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~ 
-- Lake Florida 32025 

Marian ,Jones Powell, CPI\. 904 / 755-4200 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Board of 
County Commissioners 
And Constitutional Officers 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of Columbia 
County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, as listed in 
the preceding table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are 
the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptro11 er Genera1 of the United States. Those 
standards require that we pl an and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Columbia 
County, Florida, as of September 30, 1997, and the results of its operations and 
cash flows of its ,proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated July 24, 1998, on our consideration of the Columbia County, Florida's 
internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

~1r 
July 25, 1997 



Proprietary 
Fund Type 

Enterprise
Fund 

$1,608,267 
457,707 

282,015 
46,807 

367,466 

1,523,556 

801,910 
7,079,071 
2,066,317 

(3,021,275) 

366,740 

$11,578,581 

$ 9,365 

136,648 
15,601 

100,178 

14,545 

66,524 

35,000 
260,000 

COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

Septeirber 30, 1997 

Fiduciary 
Fund Type 
Trust and General 

Account Groups 
General 

Agency
Funds 

Fixed 
Assets Group 

Long-term
Debt Group 

$1,270,486 $ $ 
6,682 

92,065 

565 

1,875,761 
11,981,268 
29,035,759 
1,213,045 

15,560,184 

$1,369,798 $59,666,017 

2,889,190 
16!611,594 

$19,500,784 

$ 
64,864 

239,641 
272,333 
365,990 
132,327 

14 
18,567 
13,632 

204,275 

58, 155 

$ $ 

Totals 
(Memorandum

Only) 

$11,823,091 
980,073 

18,214 
1,848,240 
1,255,626 

565 
15,019 

137,995 
18,397,183 

1,523,556 

801,910 
7,079,071 
2,066,317 

(3,021,275) 

1,875,761 
11,981,268 
29,035,759 

1,213,045 
15,560,184 

52,781 
555,554 

2,889,190 
16,611!594 

$122.700,721 

$ 694,244 
64,864 

1,848,240 
298,814 
365,990 
132,327 

14 
118,745 
13,632 

101,008 
14,545 

214,383 
268,866 
58,525 
66,524 

35,000 
260,000 

(continued) 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Proprietary
Fund Type 

Enterprise
Fund 

$ 

300,201 

5,565,000 
1,048,273 
7,551,335 

313,334 

2,485,356 
1,228,556 

4,027,246 
$11,578,581 

Fiduciary
Fund Tvpe
Trust and 
Agency

Funds 

$ 

1,369,798 

$1,369,798 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

September 30, 1997 

Account Groups
General General 

Fixed Long-term
Assets Group Debt Group 

$ $ 580,812 
1,068,436 

15,882,000 
1,969,536 

19,500,784 

59,666,017 
59,666,017 

s 59,666,017 $19,500,784 

Totals 
(Memorandum

Only) 

$ 580,812 
1,368,637 

15,882,000 
1,969,536 
5,565,000 
1,048,273 

30,969,979 

313,334 

28,019,265 
18,214 

2,485,356 
1,228,556 

59,666,017 
91,730,742 

$122,700,721 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

EXPENDITURES (continued)
Debt Service 

General government
Public safety
Transportation
Economic environment 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers in 
Debt proceeds
Interfund transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses 

Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of year 

General 
Fund 

$ 
156,372 

33,671 
5,479.976 

7,142,347 

(6,934.805)
(6,934,805) 

207,542 

4,296.409 
$4,503,951 

Special
Revenue 

Funds 

$ 28,942 
129,595 
138,202 

20,330,838 

(6,188,842) 

8,546,966 
166,136 

(852,161)
7,860,941 

1,672,099 

5,584,232 
$ 7,256,331 

Debt Service 
Funds 

$ 753,032 

1,181,356
208,869 

2,143,257 

3,338.728 

8,686,954 

(1,073,210)
7,613.744 

10,952,472 

4,443,843 
$15,396,315 

Capital
Projects
Funds 

$ 

1. 093. 081 

(729,982) 

373,210 

(8,746.954)
(8,373.744) 

(9,103,726) 

9,984,608 
$ 880,882 

Totals 
(Memorandum

Onlv) 

$ 781,974 
285,967 

1,319,558 
242.540 

29,047,152 

3,562,251 

17,607,130 
166,136 

(17. 607 t 130)
166,136 

3,728,387 

24,309,092 
$28,037.479 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE, DEBT SERVICE, AND CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1996 

Funds 
Variance 
Favorable 

Debt Service Funds 
Variance 
Favorable 

CaQital Projects Funds 
Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable> 

$ 367,550 $1,210,000 $1,210,699 $ 699 $ $ 207 $ 207 
21,748 

(375,535)
(61,931)

(107,831)
(107,752) 
C263, 75h 

3,455,354 

330,000 
41995,354 

3,333,598 

937,688 
5,481 1985 

(121,756) 

607,688 
4861631 

300,000 

50,m 
350,777 

300,000 

62,892 
363,099 

12,115 
12,322 

(25,141)
81,810 

372,743 
(49,942)

1,172,446 

103,694 
269,516 

1,160,374 
1,465 

103,694 
269,516 

562,394 
1,465 

597,980 

27, 164 
3,350 

(116,195)
2,192 

156,012 156,012 

(28,942) 711,230 753,032 (41,802) 

25,962 

1,465,447 

1,195,528 
149,508 

2,056,266 

1, 181,356 
208,869 

21143,257 

14, 172 
(59,361)
(86,991) 1,691,061 1,093,081 597,980 

1,201,696 2,939,088 3,338,728 399,640 (1,340,284) (729,982) 610,302 

290,913 8,686,954 8,686,954 373,210 373,210 
166, 137 

(1} 
457,049 

(1,385,710)
C 1 /385, 710) 

(1,073,210}
7,613,744 

312,500 
8,999,454 

(8,686,954}
c!! 1313 1 744> 

(8,746,954)
(8,373,744) 

(60,000)
(60,000) 

1,658,745 1,553,378 10,952,472 9,399,094 (9,654,028) (9,103,726) 550,302 

$1,658.745 
4,443,843 

$ 51997.221 
4,443,843 

$15.396.315 s 9.399,094 
9,984,608 

s 330 15!!0 
9,984,608 

s M0.882 $ 550,302 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

LANDFILL ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)
Landfill Closure 

Operating expenses
Professional services 
Other contractual services 

Total landfill closure 

Landfill Recycling
Personal services 

Regular salaries 
FICA 
Retirement 
Life and health insurance 
Worker's compensation

Total personal services 

Operating expenses
Professional services 
Other contractual services 
Insurance 
Repair and maintenance 
Operating supplies
Gas and oil 
Grant to City of Lake City

Total operating expenses
Total landfill recycling

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State of Florida grants
Interest earnings
Interest and other debt service expenses

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Net income 

Retained earnings, beginning of year
Retained earnings, end of year 

$ 35,247 
6,049 

41,296 

16,811 
1,277 
6,395 
3,456 
5,027 

32,966 

1,875 
22,341 
7,720 
2,616 

253 
5,060 

86,991 
126,856 
159,822 

2,014,735 

675,653 

187,912 
149,258 

(351,521)
(14,351) 

661,302 

3,052,612 
$3,713.914 

See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountant's report. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

LANDFILL ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by operating
activities: 
Depreciation 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences 
Decrease in other liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental units 
Increase in estimated closure liability

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 675,653 

820,067 

(173,604)
23,863

1,801,355 

(501,522)
(2,349)

(72,633)
2,054

15,601 
326,878

2,239,710 

$2,915,363 

See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountant's report. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the Columbia County, Florida have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GMP) as applied to 
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's
accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting Entity 

Columbia County, Florida (the "County") is a political subdivision of the State 
of Florida created under Section 1, Article VIII of the State Constitution. It 
is governed by an elected Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") which is 
governed by state statutes and regulations, and ordinances adopted by the Board. 
In addition, there are five Constitutional Officers who are separately elected, 
which include the Clerk of Circuit Court, Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property
Appraiser, and the Supervisor of Elections. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, the 
Clerk of the Circuit Court for the County serves as clerk and accountant of the 
Board of County Commissioners. The Board currently has budgetary control, but 
not administrative control, over the activities for the other Constitutional 
Officers, some of whom have the authority and responsibility for collecting 
revenues within their areas of jurisdiction and remitting such collections to the 
Board. 

In evaluating how to define the County, for financial reporting purposes, 
management has considered all potential component units. The decision to include 
a potential component unit in reporting entity was made by applying the criteria 
set forth in GAAP. The basic, but not the only, criterion for including a 
potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's
ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation 
of this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the 
ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the 
selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to 
significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. A 
second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of 
public service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether the 
activity benefits the government and/or its citizens, or whether the activity is 
conducted within the geographic boundaries of the government and is generally
available to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential 
component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the 
existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the 
government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the 
application of these criteria, the following is a brief review of each potential 
component unit addressed in defining the County's reporting entity: 

1 - 15 



County funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate "fund tYPes." 

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's general 
activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies 
(special revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets 
(capital projects funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt
service funds). The general fund is used to account for all activities of the 
general government not accounted for in some other fund. 

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in 
the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful 
to sound financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can 
be provided either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments 
or agencies primarily within the government (internal service funds). 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government.
When these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, either 
a pension trust fund, a nonexpendable trust fund, or an expendable trust fund is 
used. Terms "nonexpendabl e" and "expendable" refer to whether or not the 
government is under an obligation to maintain the trust principal. Agency funds 
generally are used to account for assets that the government holds on behalf of 
others as their agent. 

C. Basis of Accounting 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined 
by its measurement focus. All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are 
accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are 
included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases ( i . e. , revenues and other financing sources) and decreases ( i . e. ,
expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

All proprietary funds, nonexpendable trust funds, and pension trust funds are 
accounted for on a fl ow of economic resources measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation
of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total 
assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components.
Proprietary fund tYPe operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and 
decreases (e.g., expenses) in the net total assets. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund tYPeS 
and agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable 
and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be 
determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay 1 i abilities of the current period. The County
considers most revenues as available if they are collected within sixty days
after year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is 
incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund 
liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service 
fund for payments to be made early in the following year. 
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I. Encumbrances 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for the expenditures of monies are recorded in order to reserve that 
portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal 
budgetary integration in the General Fund, Board-administered Special Revenue 
Funds, Capital Projects Funds, and the Enterprise Fund. Material encumbrances. 
outstanding at year end, are reported as reservations of fund balances since they 
do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. 

J. Fixed Assets 
General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or 
construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as 
expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the 
general fixed assets account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at 
cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost 
where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their 
estimated fair market value on the date received. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are 
capitalized over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as 
applicable. 

Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisting of roads,
bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting 
systems are not capitalized in the general fjxed assets account group. 

Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated.
Depreciation of buildings, equipment and vehicles in the proprietary fund type
is computed using the straight-line method. 

As applicable, interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with 
tax-exempt debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by
offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing until 
completion of the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same 
period. 

K. Compensated Absences 
Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as 
vacation and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that are 
attributable to services already rendered and that are not contingent on a 
specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees
is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences 
that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that 
is outside the control of the government and its employees are accounted for in 
the period in which such services are rendered or such events take place. 

In the governmental funds. compensated absences that are expected to be 
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as an 
expenditure and fund liability in the fund that wi 11 pay for them. The remainder 
of the compensated absences liability is reported in the General Long-Term Debt 
Account Group. 

In the proprietary funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and 
liability of the fund that will pay for them. 
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NOTE 2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS 
The Board uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the financial statements. 
1. Prior to July 15, the Clerk of Circuit Court, serving as Budget Officer,

submits to the Board of County Commissioners a tentative budget for the 
fiscal year commencing October 1. 

2. Public hearings are conducted by the Board of County Commissioners to 
obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a 
resolution by the Board of County Commissioners. 

4. The Board of County Commissioners is authorized to amend fixed appropri­
ations by motion to the extent that appropriations do not exceed the total 
approved budget of the fund: or appropriate for the special purpose
intended, reserves or unanticipated receipts. Appropriations lapse at 
year end. No supplemental appropriations were necessary during the year. 

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device in 
all governmental funds. 

6. Governmental fund budgets are initially adopted on the modified accrual 
basis. The legally amended budgetary data presented in the accompanying
financial statements for the fiscal year ending September 30, 1997, are 
shown on this basis of accounting. Therefore, the actual and budgetary
data are on a comparable basis. The Enterprise Fund budgets are adopted 
on the accrual basis. 

7. Legal control of the budget is exercised pursuant to applicable provisions 
of Florida Statutes. 

NOTE 3. PROPERTY TAXES 
All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 
of each year or as soon thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the 
Property Appraiser. The Tax Collector mails to each property owner on the 
assessment roll a notice of taxes levied by the various governmental entities in 
the County. Taxes may be paid upon receipt of such notice with discounts at the 
rate of four percent (4%) if paid in the month of November, three percent (3%)
if paid in the month of December, two percent (2%) if paid in the month of 
January, and one percent (1%) if paid in the month of February. Taxes paid
during the month of March are without discount. All unpaid taxes on real and 
tangible personal property become delinquent on April 1 of the year following the 
year in which taxes were assessed. Procedures for collecting delinquent taxes,
including applicable tax certificate sales, tax deed sales and tangible personal 
property seizure and sales are provided for by the laws of Florida. Collections 
of county, municipal and independent taxing district taxes, and remittances are 
accounted for in the Tax Collector's office. No material amounts or unpaid taxes 
were due at year end. 

NOTE 4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
Deposits with Financial Institutions - The County's cash at September 30, 1997,
consists of legally authorized demand deposits in institutions which are 
certified as Qualified Public Depositories under the Florida Public Deposits Act. 
Therefore, the County's cash at September 30, 1997, is insured through the Bureau 
of Collateral Securities, Division of Treasury, State Department of Insurance. 
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Governmental 
Fund Tyge Interest Unit &Others Total 

General $ $ 445,391 $ 445,391 
Special Revenue 750,978 750,978 
Debt Service 15,019 528,134 543,153 
Enterprise 504,514 504,514 
Agency 71247 71247 

$ 151019 $212361264 $ 212511283 

The County considers all of these receivables to be collectible and no allowance 
for uncollectibility has been provided in the financial statements. 

NOTE 6. CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS 
A summary of changes in the general fixed assets follows: 

Balance Balance 
October 1, September 30, 

1996 Additions Deletions 1997 
Land $ 1,696,391 $ 179,370 $ $ 1,875,761 
Buildings 11,897,987 83,281 11,981,268 
Improvements other 

than buildings 28,185,060 850,699 29,035,759 
Construction in 

progress 1,168,276 44,769 1,213,045
Equipment 14,634,006 1.135,002 208,824 15,560,184
Total general

fixed assets $ 57 I 581,720 $ 2,293,121 $ 208,824 $ 59,666,017 

The following is a summary of changes in fixed assets during the year for the 
enterprise fund: 

Balance Net Balance 
October 1, Additions September 30, 

1996 (Deductions) 1997 
Land $ 801,910 $ $ 801,910
Equipment 1,820,607 245,710 2,066,317
Construction in progress 1,090,938 (1,090,938)
Improvements other than buildings 4,362,980 2.716, 091 7,079,071

8,076,435 1,870,863 9,947,298
Less: accumulated depreciation (2,201,208) (820,067) (3,021,275)
Net fixed assets $ 5,875,227 $1,050,796 $ 6,926,023 

NOTE 7. CAPITAL LEASES 
A. The Board of'County Commissioners has the following in installment payment 

agreements with Caterpillar Financial Services Corporation: 
1. Purchase of four motor-graders costing $418,980, net of trade-ins. 

The terms of the agreement require nine semi-annual payments of 
$26,636, including interest at 6. 5.%' beginning November 15, 1993, and 
a balloon payment at the end of sixty months of $294,636. At that 
time, the Board may also exercise its option to have the vendor 
repurchase the equipment for $290,000. 

2. Purchase of a wheel tractor scraper costing $255,448. The terms of 
the agreement require five annual payments of $37,568, which 
includes interest of 5.75.%' and a balloon payment at the end of the 
lease term of $108,747. At that time, the Board may also exercise 
its option to have the vendor repurchase the equipment for $115,000. 
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carries an interest rate of 4.33% and is payable in four annual 
installments of $143,750, plus interest, and is secured by the County's
share of-the State Pari-Mutual Tax. 

The following applies to this note, at year end: 

Balance at Estimated Payments
Payment From September 30. 1997 For Next Year 
General Fund $143,690 $ 149,894 

8. The Board has a note payable to Community National Bank for the purchase
of an office building rented to an insurance company. This original note 
of $390,000 is payable in monthly installments of $2,806, including
interest at 6%. The interest rate is fixed until March, 1999, when it 
will be changed to prime, as it fluctuates, for the duration of the loan. 
The principal balance of this loan was $291,477, at year end. 

C. The Board also has a note with Columbia County Bank for the consolidation 
of prior fire apparatus loans totaling $159,459. This note ia payable in 
six annual installments of $30,000 and one of $20,040, including interest 
at 6.25%. The principal balance of $95,557, was owed at September 30, 
1997. This loan is secured by a pledge of the non-ad valorem revenue in 
the County's MSSD Fund. 

D. The Board has two notes with Barnett Bank of North Central Florida, assoc­
iated with the development of the County owned Florida Sports Hall of Fame 
and Tourist Information Center Complex. These loans are secured by
proceeds of the Three Cent Tourist Development Tax levied by the County,
and certain revenues of the complex. Details of these loans follow: 

Revenue Notes 
A C 

Original amount $1,487,320 $ 212,680
Current interest rate 6.59% 8.29% 
Payment, monthly $ 11,037 $ 1,846
Balance at 09-30-97 $1,231,894 $ 181,993
Due date 04-23-2012 04-23-2012 

E. On September 1, 1995, the County refinanced the Series 1994 Solid Waste 
Disposal Revenue Bonds with a fixed rate loan from the City of Gulf 
Breeze, Florida Local Government Loan program. The loan of $6,090,000 is 
being repaid over a period of seventeen years with interest rates ranging
from 3.70% to 5.90%. The debt is payable from the net revenues of the 
Solid Waste Disposal facility. Debt service is accounted for in the 
Landfill Enterprise Fund. 

F. In December, 1996, the Property Appraiser financed the purchase of a new 
computer system costing $61,500 by entering into a loan agreement with CNB 
National Bank for $56,300. The loan agreement requires twelve quarterly 
payments of $4,692, including interest of 5. 22%. However, extra pri nci pal 
payments were made during the year to bring the balance to $24,925, as of 
September 30, 1997. 

Annua1 debt service requirements to maturity for notes payab1 e inc 1 udi ng interest 
of $3,395,513, are as follows: 
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On April 15, 1996, the County also closed on a Revenue Term Bond in the 
amount of $1,700,000. The proceeds were used to construct a manufacturing

·plant to be leased by the County to Homes of Merit, a mobile home manufac­
turing facility. The bonds are being repaid over a period of eleven years
with an average interest rate of 7.23%. The debt is secured by the State 
Half-Cent Sales Tax revenue, but is being paid from lease revenue. 
Debt service requirements to maturity including interest of $815,665, are 
as follows: 
Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 

Thereafter 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Amount 
$ 185,777 

187,496
193,944
193,552 
192,889

1,457,007
$ 2,410,665 

During the year ended September 30, 1997, the following occurred in liabilities 
reported in the general long-term debt account group: 

Compensated absences 
Capital leases 
Notes payable
Revenue bonds payable 

Proprietary Debt 

Compensated absences 
Capital leases 
Revenue bonds payable
Notes payable 

Balance 
October 1, 

1996 
$ 527,901

1,034,326
2,184,938 

17,205,000
$20,952,165 

Balance 
October 1, 

1996 
$ 16,894

217,881 

6,080,000
$6,314,775 

Additions 
$ 52,911

149,300
56,300 

$ 258,511 

Retirements 
$ 

115,190
271,702 

1,323,000
$ 1,709,892 

Balance 
September 30, 

1997 
$ 580,812

1,068,436 
1,969,536

15,882,000 
$ 19,500,784 

Additions 
$ 

173,884 

Retirements 
$ 2,349

25,040 

Balance 
September 30, 

1997 
$ 14,545

366,725 

$ 1731884 
255,000

$ 2821389 
5,825,000

$ 6,206,270 

NOTE 9. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 
Balances at September 30, 1997, were: 

Fund 
General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: 

Community Development Block Grant 1994 
County Transportation Trust 
Court Reporters
Fines and Forfeitures 
Industrial Development Authority
Law Library
Library Enhancement Grant 
Municipal Services Benefit Unit 
Municipal Services Special District 
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Interfund 
Receivables 

$ 5611140 

30,336 
4,839

16,608
61,707 

14 
625 

355,467 
41,700

511,296 

Interfund 
Payables 

$ 524,110 

142,146 
88,800 

56,647 
155,427
69,896

512,916 



The Florida Retirement System provides vesting of benefits after ten years of 
creditable service, eight years for Elected State and County Officer's Class 
(ESCOC), or seven years for Senior Management Service Class (SMSC). Members are 
eligible for normal retirement when they have met the minimum requirements for 
their specific class of membership. Early retirement may be taken any time after 
vesting; however, there is a 5% benefit reduction for each year prior to normal 
retirement age. 
Benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and 
service credit. Average final compensation is the average of the five highest
fiscal years of earnings. Members may select one of four benefit options at 
retirement. The System also provides death and disability benefits. 
Retirement coverage is employee noncontributory. Emplayers pay a11 
contributions. Rates are based on cl ass of membership. The contribution 
requirement for the year ended September 30, 1997, was $1,773,230, which 
represents 20.3% of covered payroll. 
The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized measure of the present value 
of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, 
estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. 
The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and is 
intended to help users (1) assess the Florida Retirement Systems' funding status 
on a going-concern basis, (2) assess progress in accumulating sufficient assets 
to pay benefits when due, and (3) make comparisons among Public Employee
Retirement Systems. The measure is independent of and should not be confused 
with the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the System. 
At June 30, 1997, the unfunded pension benefit obligation for the State of 

investment of and future of 8 compounded 

Florida Retirement System, determined through an 
as of that date was $(1.958) billion as follows: 

actuarial valuation performed 

Billions 
Pension Benefits Obligation
Net Assets Available for 

$ 54.263 

Benefits at Amortized Cost 56.221 
Unfunded Pension Benefit Obligation $ (1. 958) 

Significant actuarial assumptions used include (a) a rate of return on the 
present assets percent per year

annually; (b) projected salary increases of 5.5 percent per year compounded
annually, attributable to inflation; (c) additional projected salary increases 
of 2.0 percent per year attributable to seniority/merit; and (d) a post­
retirement benefit increase of 3 percent per year. 
The ten year hi stori ca1 trend information showing the System's progress in accum­
ulating sufficient_ assets to pay benefits when due is not presently available. 
Historical trend information, commencing with the fiscal year 1986-87, is pre­
sented in the Florida Retirement System's June 30, 1997, comprehensive annual 
financial report. 

NOTE 12. NOTES RECEIVABLE AND RESERVE 
The notes receivable balance of $18,214 in the Community Development Block Grant 
Fund consists of the total of the pri nci pal va1ue of rehabi 1i tati on loans granted 
to recipients through the HUD Community Development Block Grant Program. These 
notes have been equally offset by a fund balance reserve account because they do 
not represent available spendable resources. Included in the balance is a note 
receivable of $8,925 upon which no payments have been made since its inception
in December, 1979. The collectibility of these notes has not been determined by
the County. 
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COMPONENT UNIT FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 



2585- S. Fit·st Street 
Richard C. Povvell, Jr., c:::iJ\ Florida :J20;25 
iVlarian Jones Powell, CPI\ 

Fax: 904 / 755-4(DO 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Board of County Commissioners 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying component unit general purpose financial 
statements of the Columbia County Board of County Commissioners, the primary 
government of Columbia County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September
30, 1997, as 1 i sted in the preceding tab 1 e of contents. These fi nanci a 1 
statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those stand­
ards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material mis­
statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presen­
tation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The component unit general purpose financial statements referred to above include 
only the financial activities of the primary government. Financial activities 
of other component units are not included. 

In our opinion, the component unit general purpose financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Columbia County Board of County Commissioners, the primary government of Columbia 
County, Florida, as of September 30, 1997, and the results of its operations and 
cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated July 24, 1998, on our consideration of the Columbia County Board of County
Commissioners' internal control over financial reporting and out tests of its 
compliance with certain laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 



COMBINED FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

September 30, 1997 

Proprietary 
Fund TyQe Account GrOUQS 

Capital General General Totals 
Projects Enterprise Fixed Long-term ~Memorandum 

Funds Fund Assets Group Debt Group Only) 

$ 218,711 $1,608,267 $ $ $ 9,913,896 
457,707 973,391 

18,214 
90,069 282,015 1,159,302 

46,807 1,723,488 
15,019 

133,057 
595,496 367,466 18,397,183 

1,523,556 1,523,556 

801,910 801,910 
7,079,071 7,079,071 
2,066,317 2,066,317 

(3,021,275) (3,021,275) 

1,875,761 1,875,761 
11,981,268 11,981,268 
29,035,759 29,035,759 
1,213,045 1,213,045 

13,344,038 13,344,038 

52,781 
366,740 555,554 

2,889,190 2,889,190 
16!5591721 1615591721 

$ 9oz.,:m; $11,578,581 $ 57,449,871 $ 19,448,911 $118 I 29(), 24D 

$ 22, 125 $ 9,365 $ $ $ 437,768 
1,269 136,648 1,159,302 

15,601 69,262
/" f C· 

/ L) (100, 178--c- 100,178 
' I 90,783 

14,545 14,545 
10,108 

268,866 
436 

66,524 66,524 

35,000 35,000 
260,000 260,000 

(continued) 
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Capital
Projects 

Funds 

$ 

23,394 

880,882 

880,882 
$ 904,276 

COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

September 30, 1997 

Proprietary
Fund Type 

General 
Account Groups 

General 
Enterprise 

Fund 
Fixed 

Assets Group 
Long-term 
Debt Group 

$ $ $ 580,812 
300,201 1,041,488 

15,882,000 
1,944,611 

5,565,000 
1,048,273 
7,551,335 19,448,911 

313,334 

2,485,356 
1,228,556 

57,449,871 
4,027,246 57,449,871 

$11,578,581 $ 57!449,871 $ 19 i2;4a1911 

Totals 
(Memorandum

Only) 

$ 580,812 
1,341,689 

15,882,000 
1,944,611 
5,565,000 
1,048,273 

28,875,157 

313,334 

27,919,758 
18,214 

2,485,356 
1,228,556 

57,449,871 
89,415,089 

$118,290,246 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

EXPENDITIJRES (continued)
Debt Service 

General government
Public safety
Transportation
Economic environment 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Interfund transfers in 
Debt proceeds
Interfund transfers out 
Interfund transfers to County Officers 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses 

Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of year 

General 
Fund 

$ 
156,372 

33.671 
5.479.976 

7.142,347 

(37,327)
(6,897,478)
(6,934,805) 

207,542 

4.296.409 
$4,503,951 

Special
Revenue 
Funds 

$ 
129,595 
138,202 

11,067,057 

1,584,629 

797,327 
166,137 

(852,162)
111,302 

1,695,931 

5.460.893 
$ 7,156,824 

Debt Service 
Funds 

$ 753,032 

1,181,356 
208,869 

2.143,257 

3,338.728 

8,686,954 

(1,073,210) 

7 .613.744 

10,952.472 

4,443.843 
$15,396,315 

Capital
Projects
Funds 

$ 

1,093.081 

(729,982) 

373,210 

(8,746,954) 

(8,373.744) 

(9,103,726) 

9,984.608 
$ 880,882 

Totals 
(Memorandum

Only) 

$ 753,032 
285,967 

1,319,558 
242.540 

19.783.371 

11.335.722 

9,857,491 
166,137 

(9,857,491)
(7,749.640)
(7,583.503) 

3,752,219 

24,185.753 
$27,937,972 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE, DEBT SERVICE, AND CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Funds 
Variance 
Favorable 

{Unfavorable} Budget 

Debt Service Funds 
Variance 
Favorable 

Actual {Unfavorable} Budget 

Caeital Projects Funds 
Variance 
Favorable 

Actual {Unfavorable} 

$ 367,550 
21,748 

(375,535) 
215,021 

(107,785) 
(108,578) 

12,421 

$1,210,000 

3,455,354 

330,000 
4/195,354 

$1,210,699 

3,333,598 

937,688 
5,481,985 

$ 699 

(121,756) 

607,688 
486,631 

$ 

300,000 

50,777 
350,777 

$ 207 

300,000 

62,892 
363,099 

$ 207 

12,115 
12,322 

(24,327)
12,489 

372,743 
(49,942) 

1,172,446 

103,694 
269,516 

1,160,374 
1,465 

103,694 
269,516 

562,394 
1,465 

597,980 

C 116,195) 
2,192 

25,962 

1,395,368 

1,407,789 

72,749 
166,137 

( 1) 
238,885 

1,646,674 

$1,646,674 

711,230 

1,195,528 
149,508 

21 os6,2li6 

2,939,088 

(1,385,710) 

(1,385,710) 

1,553,378 

4,443,843 
s 5.997.221 

753,032 

1, 181,356 
208,869 

2,143,257 

3,338,728 

8,686,954 

(1,073,210) 

7,613,'744 

10,952,472 

4,443,843 
$15.396.315 s 

(41,802) 

14,172 
(59,361)
(86,991) 

399,640 

8,686,954 

312,500 

8,999,454 

9,399,094 

9.399.094 

156,012 

1,691,061 

(1,340,284) 

373,210 

(8,686,954) 

(8,313,744) 

(9,654,028) 

9,984,608 
s 330,580 

156,012 

1,093,081 

(729,982) 

373,210 

(8,746,954) 

(8,373,744) 

(9,103,726) 

9,984,608 
S 880.882 $ 

597,980 

610,302 

(60,000) 

(60,000) 

550,302 

550,302 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUN"IY COMMISSIONERS 

LANDFILL ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)
Landfill Closure 

Operating expenses
Professional services $ 35,247 
Other contractual services 6.049 

Total landfill closure 41,296 

Landfill Recycling
Personal services 

Regular salaries 16,811 
FICA 1,277 
Retirement 6,395 
Life and health insurance 3,456 
Worker's compensation 5.027 

Total personal services 32.966 

Operating expenses
Professional services 1,875 
Other contractual services 22,341 
Insurance 7,720 
Repair and maintenance 2,616 
Operating supplies 253 
Gas and oil 5,060 
Grant to City of Lake City 86,991

Total operating expenses 126,856 
Total landfill recycling 159,822 

Total operating expenses 2,014.735 

Operating income 675.653 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State of Florida grants 187,912
Interest earnings 149,258 
Interest and other debt service expenses (351. 521)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (14,351) 

Net income 661,302 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 3.052,612
Retained earnings, end of year $3 .713, 914 

See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountant's report. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

LANDFILL ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997. 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by operating
activities: 
Depreciation 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences 
Decrease in other liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental units 
Increase in estimated closure liability

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 675.653 

820,067 

(173,604)
23,863 

1,801,355 

(501,522)
(2,349)

(72,633)
2,054 

15,601 
326.878 

2,239.710 

$2,915,363 

See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountant's report. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 1997 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the Columbia County Board of County Commissioners 
have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the 
government's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting Entity 
Columbia County, Florida (the "County") is a political subdivision of the State 
of Florida created under Section 1, Article VIII of the State Constitution. It 
is governed by an elected Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") which is 
governed by state statutes and regulations, and ordinances adopted by the Board. 
In addition, there are five Constitutional Officers who are separately elected, 
which include the Clerk of Circuit Court, Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property
Appraiser, and the Supervisor of Elections. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, the 
Clerk of the Circuit Court for the County serves as clerk and accountant of the 
Board of County Commissioners. The Board currently has certain budgetary
control, but not administrative control, over the activities for the other 
Constitutional Officers, some of whom have the authority and responsibility for 
collecting revenues within their areas of jurisdiction and remitting such 
collections to the Board. 

B. Fund Accounting 
> 
~ 

The Board uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and 
the results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal
compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related 
to certain government functions or activities. 

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 
An account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to 
provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded 
in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available 
financial resources. 

Board funds are classified into three categories: governmental. proprietary, and 
fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate "fund types." 

Governmental funds are used to account for all or· most of a government's general
activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies 
(special revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets 
(capital projects funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt
service funds). The general fund is used to account for all activities of the 
general government not accounted for in some other fund. 
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incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue 
recognition criteria are met, or when the government has a legal claim to the 
resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined 
balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 

D. :, Budgets 
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all County funds. All 
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Project-length financial plans 
are also adopted for capital projects funds. 

E. Cash and Investments 
Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term money market 
investment accounts. 

Investments, consisting of certificates of deposit, investments in the Florida 
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, and Florida Counties Investment Trust 
Fund are stated at cost which approximates market value. All such investments 
are secured as required by state law. 

F. Short-term Interfund Receivable/Payables 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual 
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and~payables 
are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance 
sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as "interfund receivables/
payables." 

G. ,:, Prepaid Items 
Significant payments made to vendors for goods or services that will benefit 
periods beyond September 30, 1997, are recorded as prepaid items. 

H. Inventories 
Inventories associated with Road Department operations are valued at cost, which 
approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of 
other governmental fund type inventories are 1ecorded as expenditures when 
purchased rather than when consumed. 

I. Encumbrances 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for the expenditures of monies are recorded in order to reserve that 
portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal 
budgetary integration in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital
Projects Funds, and the Enterprise Fund. Material encumbrances. outstanding at 
year end, are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not 
constitute expenditures or liabilities. 

J. Fixed Assets 
General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or 
construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as 
expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the 
general fixed assets account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at 
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H. Fund Equity 
Reserved fund balances represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable
for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund 
balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources. 

N. Interfund Transactions 
Quasi -external transactions are accounted for as revenues or expenditures.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded 
as expenditures/expenses -in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of 
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 
All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and 
reimbursements, are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or non- routine permanent
transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. A11 other 
interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. 

0. Memorandum Only - Total Columns 
Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned
"memorandum on1y" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate 
financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position,
results of operations or changes in financial position in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Neither are such data comparable to 
a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation
of this data. 

P. Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Q. Proprietary Activity Accounting and Financial Reporting 
The County applies all applicable Government Accounting Standards (GASB) 
pronouncements as we11 as the fo11 owing pronouncements issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and 
Interpretations. Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinion and Accounting
Research Bulletins (ARB's). 

R. Restricted Assets 
The Landfi 11 Fund is required by Florida law to establish and maintain prescribed 
amounts of resources (consisting of investments) that can only be used to pay for 
closure costs of its landfill. 

NOTE 2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS 
The Board uses the fo11 owing procedures in establ i shi ng the budgetary data 
reflected in the financial statements. 
1. Prior to July·15, the Clerk of Circuit Court, serving as Budget Officer,

submits to the Board of County Commissioners a tentative budget for the 
fiscal year commencing October 1. 

2. Public hearings are conducted by the Board of County Commissioners to 
obtain taxpayer comments. 
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(c) Interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in banks organized
under the laws of this state, in national banks organized under the 
laws of the United States and doing business and situated in this 
state~ in savings and loan associations which are under state 
supervision, or in federal savings and loan associations located in 
this state and organized under federal law and federal supervision,
provided that any such deposits are secured by collateral as may be 
prescribed by law;

(d) Obligations of the federal farm credit banks; the Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation, including Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
participation certificates; or the Federal Home Loan Bank or its 
district banks or obligations guaranteed by the Government National 
Mortgage Association: 

(e) Obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association, including
Federal National Mortgage Association participation certificates and 
mortgage pass-through certificates guaranteed by the Federal National 
Mortgage Association; or 

(f) Securities of, or interest in, any open-end or closed-end management 
type investment company or investment trust registered under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C. ss. SOa-1 et seq .. as amended 
from time to time, provided the portfolio of such investment company or 
investment trust is limited to United States Government obligations and 
to repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such United States 
Government obligations and provided such investment company takes 
delivery of such collateral either directly or through an authorized 
custodian. 

At September 30, 1997, the Board's investments consisted of the following: 

Carrying Market 
Amount Value Category

Florida Counties Investment Trust Fund $1,523,557 $1,523,557
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund 5,103,064 5,103,064
U.S. Treasury Securities 13,144,120 13,144,120 1 
Certificate of deposit 150,000 150,000 1 

$19,920,741 $19,920,741 

The Board's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of 
risk assumed by the Board at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are 
insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the Board or its 
agent in the Board's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered
investment for which the securities are held by the counterparty' s trust 
department or agent in the Board's name. Category 3 includes uninsured or 
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty's 
trust department or agent, but not in the Board's name. 

NOTE 5. RECEIVABLES 
Receivables at September 30, 1997, consist of the following: 

Governmental 
Billed Unit 

Fund TYQe Interest Accounts Pavments Total 
General $ $ 397 $ 859,388 $ 859,785 
Special Revenue 515,287 289,159 804,446 
Enterprise 457,707 46,807 504,514 
Debt Service 15,019 528,134 543,153 

$15,019 $973,391 $1,723,488 $2,711,898 
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1. Purchase of four motor-graders costing $418,980, net of trade-ins. 
The terms of the agreement require nine semi-annual payments of 
$26,636, including interest at 6.5% beginning November 15, 1993, and 
a balloon payment at the end of sixty months of $294,636. At that 
time, the Board may also exercise its option to have the vendor 
repurchase the equipment for $290,000. 

2. Purchase of a wheel tractor scraper costing $255,448. The terms of 
the agreement require five annual payments of $37,568, which include 
interest of 5.85% and a balloon payment at the end of the lease term 
of $108,747. At that time, the Board may also exercise its option 
to have the vendor repurchase the equipment for $115,000. 

3. Purchase of a wheel tractor scraper costing $185,000. The terms of 
the agreement require four annual payments of $52,477, including
interest at 7%. 

4. Purchase of three motor-graders costing $335,463. The terms of the 
agreement require four annual payments of $25,962, including
interest at 5.9%, beginning October 1, 1994, and a balloon payment 
at the end of five years of $277,500. At that time, the Board may
also exercise its option to have the vendor repurchase the equipment
for $277,500. 

5. Purchase of a wheel loader costing $149,900. The terms of the 
agreement require five annual payments of $33,273, including
interest at 5.5% beginning June 17, 1996. At the end of the five 
years, the Board may keep the loader or have the vendor repurchase
it for $90,000. 

6. Purchase of a motor-grader costing $166,137, for which an advance 
payment of $16,837 was made. The terms of the agreement require
four annual payments of H6,837 with a terminating payment of 
$118,000, including interest at 5.5%. 

B. The Board also has an installment payment agreement with Deere Credit,
Inc. for the purchase of three motor-graders costing $305,730. The note 
is payable in semi-annual payments of $17,069, including interest at 6%. 

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these 
capital leases, and the present value of the net mini mum lease payments at 
September 30, 1997: 

County Commission 
Segtember 30, Governmental Entergrise Total 

1998 $ 623,750 $ 87,176 $ 710,926 
1999 327,610 87,176 414,786 
2000 50,110 87,176 137,286 
2001 16,837 164,608 181,445 
2002 118,000 118,000 

Total minimum 
lease payments 1,136,307 426,136 1,562,443 
Less: amount rep-
resenting interest (94,819) C59Al1> (154,230)
Present value of 
future minimum 
lease payments $1,041,488 $ 366,725 $ 1,408,213 
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Revenue Bonds 
A. On October 7, 1993, the County issued $9,500, 000 in Transportation

Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds - Seri es 1993. These bonds 
provided approximately $3,430,000 in road improvement funds, as well as 
extinguished the fo11 owing outstanding bonds: State Board of 
Administration held - Series 1975, 1982; County held - Series 1989, 1990. 
These bonds wi 11 be repaid over a twenty year period at an average
interest rate of 4.56%, and will be secured by Local Option Gas Tax and 
Constitutional Gas Tax revenues. Debt service is accounted for in the 
applicable debt service fund. 

Debt service requirements to maturity, including interest of $1,848,738, 
are as follows: 
Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Amount 
1998 $1,155,190 
1999 1,147,318 
2000 1,147,184 
2001 526,496 
2002 317,801 

Thereafter 3,789,749 
$8,083,738 

B. On April 15, 1996, the County closed on a Revenue Term Bond held by Sun­
bank National Association in the amount of $8,400,000. The proceeds will 
be used for courthouse and other County building renovations. The bonds 
are to be repaid over a ten year period with an average interest rate of 
4.65%. The debt is secured by the State Half-Cent Sales Tax revenue. 
Debt service is accounted for in the applicable debt service fund. 
Debt service requirements to maturity including interest of $1,760,864, 
are as follows: 
Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Amount 
1998 $ 722,138 
1999 712,316 
2000 1,557,314 
2001 1,497,157 
2002 1,429,888

Thereafter 3,894,051 
$ 9,812.864 

On the same .. date, the County closed on a Line of Credit Bond held by
SunBank National Association in the amount of $1,500,000. The interest 
rates and security are the same as the above Term Bond. Interest is 
payable on this line of credit quarterly with all outstanding principal
due on January 1, 2001. The County has made no advances under this line 
of credit as of September 30, 1997. 
On April 15, 1996, the County also closed on a Revenue Term Bond in the 
amount of $1,700,000. The proceeds were used to construct a manufacturing
plant to be leased by the County to Homes of Merit. The bonds are to be 
repaid over a period of eleven years with an average interest rate of 
7.23%. The debt is secured by the State Half-Cent Sales Tax revenue. 
Debt service is accounted for in the applicable debt service fund. 
Debt service requirements to maturity, including interest of $815,665, are 
as follows: 
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NOTE 10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES , 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and 
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the State and Federal governments.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a 
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may
be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the 
County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
The County is defendant in various pending or threatened litigation. Although
the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of 
the County Attorney the resolution of these matters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial condition of the County. 

NOTE 11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION P~ 

All Columbia County full-time employees participate in the Florida Retirement 
System ("the System"), a multiple-employer public employee retirement system.
The payroll for Board of County Commissioners' employees covered by the System
for the year ended September 30, 1997, was $3,557,994; this figure al so 
represents the total payroll. 

Membership is compulsory for all full-time and part-time employees working in a 
regularly established position for Columbia County. Elected County officials may
elect not to participate in the System. 

The Florida Retirement System provides vesting of benefits after ten years of 
creditable service, eight years for Elected State and County Officer's Class 
(ESCOC), or seven years for Senior Management Service Class (SMSC). Members are 
eligible for normal retirement when they have met the minimum requirements for 
their specific class of membership. Early retirement may be taken any time after 
vesting; however, there is a 5% benefit reduction for each year prior to normal 
retirement age. 

Benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and 
service credit. Average final compensation is the average of the five highest
fiscal years of earnings. Members may select one of four benefit options at 
retirement. The System also provides death and disability benefits. 

Retirement coverage is employee noncontributory. Employers pay all 
contributions. Rates are based on class of membership. The contribution 
requirement for the year ended September 30, 1997, was $595,049, which represents
16.7% of covered p~yroll. 

The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized measure of the present value 
of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, 
estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. 
The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and is 
intended to help users (1) assess the Florida Retirement Systems' funding status 
on a going-concern basis, (2) assess progress in accumulating sufficient assets 
to pay benefits when due, and (3) make comparisons among Public Employee
Retirement Systems. The measure is independent of and should not be confused 
with the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the System. 

At June 30, 1997, the unfunded pension benefit obligation for the State of 
Florida Retirement System, determined through an actuarial valuation performed 
as of that date was $(1.958) billion as follows: 
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Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the 
date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the County reports a portion of 
these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period
based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. 

$721,395 reported as 1andfi 11 c1osure and paste1osure care 1i abi 1i ty at September
30, 1997, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 
the estimated capacity of the landfill. The County will recognize the remaining
estimated cost of closure and postclosure care as the remaining estimated 
capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all 
closure and annual postclosure care in 1997. The County expects to close this 
landfill cell in the year 1999. Actual cost may be higher because of inflation,
changes in technology, or changes in regulations. 

The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual 
contributions to an escrow account to finance closure. The County is in 
compliance with these requirements, and at September 30, 1997, restricted cash 
of $561,649 is held for this purpose. This is reported as restricted assets on 
the balance sheet. The County expects future inflation costs to be paid from 
interest earnings on these annual contributions. However, if interest earnings 
are inadequate or additional postclosure care requirements are determined 
(because of changes in technology or applicable laws and regulations, for 
example), these costs may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users 
or from other future revenues of the County. 

2 - 28 
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GENERAL FUND 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

REVENUES 
Budget Actual 

Taxes 
Ad valorem taxes 

Current ad valorem taxes 
Delinquent ad valorem taxes 
Real property fees 

Total ad valorem taxes 

$7,528,753
25,000 

200 
7,553,953 

$7,311,671
45,092 

7,356,763 

Sales and use taxes 
Local government

infrastructure surtax 
Total taxes 

31219,129 
1017731082 

3,5781285
101935,048 

Variance 
Favorable 

{Unfavorable) 

$ (217,082)
20,092 

{200)
(197,190) 

3591156 
1611966 

Intergovernmental revenue 
State grants

Public safety
Sheriff's Department
State Emergency Management
State Emergency Preparedness
Hazardous materials 
Emergency management SLA 

Physical environment 
Litter and Marine Debris 

Transportation
Economic development

Human services 
Mosquito control-1 

Culture/recreation
Aid to libraries 
Florinet grant

Total state grants 

55,960
12,000
92,090 

10,000 

98,713 

26,600 

40,000 
31500 

3381863 

69,653
14,873 

101,253
2,867
3,764 

4,998 

98,713 

26,600 

40,494 
31500 

366J15 

13,693
2,873
9,163
2,867
3,764 

(5,002) 

27,852 

State shared revenues 
General government

Insurance agents county
licenses 

Alcoholic beverage licenses 
Racing tax 

Total state shared revenues 

4,500
10,000 

2231250 
2371750 

11,875
10,796 

2231250 
2451921 

7,375 
796 

8.171 
(continued) 2 - 30 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

GENERAL FUND . 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Library fines 

Lake City $ 20,000 $ 19,716 $ (284)
Fort White 500 720 220 

Total library fines 201500 201436 (64)
Total fines and forfeitures 801500 1101391 29,891 

Miscellaneous 
Interest earnings

Interest on investments 50,000 247,135 197,135
Interest SBA 10,000 45 (9,955)
Interest County officers 

Sheriff 10,609 10,609
Supervisor of Elections 306 306 
Restitution interest 292 292 

Total interest earnnings 601000 2581387 1981387 

Rents and royalties
Rents 373 373 
Jefferson Pilot rent 46,644 89,516 . 42.872 

Total rents and royalties 46.644 89,889 43,245 

Sale of fixed assets 
Equipment 101000 (10,000) 

Contributions and donations 
Library 500 500 
Donation Bernhard Trust 7,837 7,837
Library Council 6.000 6,000

Total contributions and 
donations 6.000 14,337 8.337 

Other miscellaneous (62,852) (62,852)
Total miscellaneous 122.644 299.761 177 I 117

Total revenues 111910,886 12,622,323 711.437 

EXPENDITURES 
General government

Legislative
Personal services 416,159 416,159
Operating expenses 84,441 45,194 39,247
Capital outlay 5.342 41.297 (35,955)

Total legislative 505.942 502,650 3,292
(continued) 2 - 32 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Supervisor of Elections 
Personal services 

Budget 

$ 2,150 

Actual 

$ 2,743 
Non-departmental

Personal services 
Operating expenses
Ca~ital outlay

Tota non-departmental 

3,698 
235,144 

2,150 
240,992 

3,698 
235,144 

238,842 
Courthouse maintenance 

Personal services 
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Courthouse maintenance 

140,586 
79,999 

75 
220,660 

140,586 
79,999 

75 
220,660 

Courthouse annex maintenance 
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Courthouse annex 

47,541 
1,492 

47,541 
1,492 

maintenance 49,033 49,033 
Montgomery building

Operating expenses 17,061 17,061 
Jail maintenance 

Operating expenses 24,484 24,484 
Criminal investigations

Operating expenses 3,904 3,904 
Elections office 

Operating expenses
Total general go~ernment 

2,558 
2,096,018 

2,558 
2,169,951 

Public safety
Law enforcement 

Personal services 167,164 167,164 
Detention Center operations

Personal services 129,880 129,880 
Detention Center facilities 

Personal services 
Operating expenses
cagital outlay
De t service 

Total Detention Center 

36,301 
172,303 
11,464 

156,372 

36,301 
172,303 
11,464 

156,372 

facilities 
(continued) 

376,440 
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Variance 
Favorable 

{Unfavorable} 

$ (593) 

2,150 
2,150 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Budget Actual 
Economic environment 

Industry development
Operating expenses $ 46,120 $ 46,120
Debt service 33,671 33,671
Grants and aids 51000 51000 

Total industry development 84,791 84,791 
Commissioners special projects

Operating expenses
Grants and aids 

Total Commissioners special
projects 

441 
19,138 

19,579 

441 
19,138 

19,579 
Otted grant

Operating expenses 400 400 
Veterans services 

Personal services 
Operating expenses

Total veterans services 

69,127
4,078

73,205 

69,127 
41078 

731205 
Other economic environment 

Grants and aids 
Total economic environment 

33,599
211,574 

331599 
211,574 

Human services 
Mosquito control 

Personal services 
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total mosquito. control 

9,888
36,880 
231440 
70,208 

9,888 
36,880 
231440 
70,208 

Health 
Grants and aids 871,754 871,754 

Mental health 
Grants and aids 52,500 52,500 

Welfare 
Grants and aids 401000 401000 

Retardation 
Grants and aids 221250 22,250 

Other human services 
Grants and aid 

Total human services 
(continued) 

181000 
1,074,712 

18,000
1,074,712 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Budget 

$6,508.135 

Actual 

$ 7.142.347 

OTI-lER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers 

Transfer to Clerk operating (447,055)
Transfer to Property Appraiser (581,971)
Transfer to Sheriff (5,552,229)
Transfer to Supervisor of 

Elections (290,847)
Transfer to Tax Collector (328,129)
Transfer to CDBG 
Transfer to MSBU 
Transfer to MSSD 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) (7,200.231) 

(368,193)
(580,635)

(5,451,821) 

(292,039)
(204,790)
(24,123)
(6,602) 
(6,602) 

(6,934.805) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources over 
expenditures and financing uses (692,096) 207,542 

Fund balance at beginning of year 4,296,409 4,296,409 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 634.212 

78,862 
1,336 

100,408 

(1,192)
123,339 
(24,123)
(6,602) 
(6,602) 

265,426 

899,638 

Fund balance at end of year $3,604,313 $ 41503,951 $ 899,638 

See notes to financial statements. 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 



---
---

Industrial Law 
Development Enforcement 
Authority Special 

$42,954 $ 3,925 
484 

14 

937 
$ 43/+52 $ 41862 

$ 996 $ 

996 

42,456 4,862 
$43,452 $ 41862 

Law 
Library 

$ 931 

625 

$ 1.556 

$ 

1,556 
$1,556 

COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

September 30, 1997 

Library Local Municipal
Enhancement Housing Services 

Grant Assistance Benefit Unit 

$ $ 45,274 $ 867,567 
12,947 

354,765 

702 

866,852 113,060 13,664 
$ 866/~52 $ 158,334 $1.249,645

$ 11,561 
56,647 

$ 23,000 $ 76,849 
148,491 

8,768 

68,208 23,000 
19 

234,127 

$ 
798,644 
866,852 $ 

135,334 
158/534 

1,015,518 
$1.249.645 

Municipal
Services 
Special 

District 

$1,015,675 
76,795 

40,490 

209,503 

933,798 
$2,276,261 

$ 82,735 
62,959 
6,937 

262,211 
417 

415,259 

1,861,002 
$2,276,261

Tourist 
Development 

Tax Totals 

$ 2,160 $3,028,821 
515,287 

18,214 
430,430 

289,159 
133,057 

4,549 3,807,074 
$ 6/709 $8,222,042 

$ 4,411 $ 277,715 
499,043 
15,705 
10,108 

262,211 
436 

4 411 1,065,218 

2,298 7,156,824
$ 6,709 $8,222,042

See notes to financial statements. 

2 - 40 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Municipal
Industrial Law Library Local Municipal Services Tourist 
Development Enforcement Law Enhancement Housing Services Special Development 
Authoritl s12ecial Librarl Grant Assistance Benefit Unit District Tax Totals 

$117,068 

3,000 

4,781 
124,849 

112,838 

$ 

7,862 
144 

8,006 

4,000 

$ 

6,030 

6,030 

7,083 

3,079 

115,917 

8,932 

4,000 

4,006 

7,083 

_j_1, 053) 

8,932 

33,524 
$42,456 $ 

4,006 

856 
4,862 

(1;053) 

2,609 
$ 1.556 

$ 

339,590 

49,918 
389,508 

$ 

309,560 

7,602 
317,162 

$ 303,328 
297,748 
341,002 

2,159 
50 

2,463,973 
3,408,260 

$ 

700,997 
920,210 

1,655,170 
3,276,377 

$ 90,000 

194,283 
284,283 

$2,244,618 
297,748 

3,216,439 
1,023,379 

680,765 
5,188,737 

12,651,686 

342,026 

186,034 

528,060 

(138,552) 

288,816 

288,816 

28,346 

57,247 
304,002 

2,392,101 
59,514 
1,105 

20,803 

21,647 
17,021 

2,873,440 

534,820 

6,602 

(46,358) 
(39."156) 

50,058 
2,155,211 

254,540 

129,595 

2,589,404 

686,973 

6,602 

(30! 133) 
(23,531) 

312,990 

808 

313,798 

(29,515) 

203,015 
2,463,213 
2,411,003 
2,500,808 
1,894,962 

362,829 

4,185 
308,187 
461,137 

3,887 
186,034 

129,595 
138,202 

11,067,057 

1,584,629 

797,327 
166,137 

(852,162) 
111,302 

(138,552) 

937,196 
$ 798.644 $ 

28,346 

106,988 
135,334 

495,064 

520,454 
$1.015.518 

663,442 

1,197,560 
$1,861,002 $ 

(29,515) 

31,813 
2,298 

1,695,931 

5,460,893 
$ 7,156,824 

See notes to financial statements. 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS , 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Courthouse Tourist 
Imgrovement 1993 Debt Development
De t Service Service Debt Service Totals 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ $1,050,000 $ 160,699 $ 1,210,699
Intergovernmental 

revenue 2,469,362 864,236 3,333,598
Miscellaneous 873,500 47 107 17,081 937,688

Total revenues 3,342,862 1,961,343 177,780 5,481,985 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt Service 

General government
Transportation
Economic environment 

Total expenditures 

753,032 

571239 
810,271 

1,181,356 

1,181,356 
151,630 
151,630 

753,032 
1,181,356 

208,869 
21143,257 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures 2,532,591 779,987 26,150 3,338,728 

OlHER FINANCING SOURCES 
(USES)

Interfund transfers in 8,686,954 8,686,954
Interfund transfers out (373 I 210) {700 I 000) (1,073,210)

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 8,313,744 {700,000) 7,613,744 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues and other 
financing sources 
over expenditures and 
other financing uses 10,846,335 79,987 26,150 10,952,472 

Fund balances at 
beginning of year 213821928 1,733,665 327,250 4A43,843

Fund balances at end 
of year $13,229,263 $ 1,8131652 $ 353,400 $151396,315 

See notes to financial statements. 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

September 30, 1997 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Due from other funds 
Investments 

Total assets 

Capital
Projects 

$ 

$ 

Fifth and 
Sixth Cent 
Fuel Tax 
Trust 

$ 196,944 

4991225 
$ 696,169 

Road 
Imgrovement 

$ 21,767 
90,069 

553 
$ 1121389 

Industrial 
Park Trust 

$ 

951718 
$ 951718 

Totals 

$ 218,711 
90,069 

5951496 
$ 9041276. 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable
Due to other funds 

$ $ 22,125 $ $ 
1,269 

$ 22,125
1,269 

FUND BALANCES 
Undesignated fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 
674. 044 

$ 6961169 
112.389 

$ 1121389 
94.449 

$ 951718 
8801882 

$ 904.276 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNlY COMMISSIONERS 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers in 
Interfund transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Capital
Pro,iects 

$ 373,210 
(8.686,954)rn. 313 .744> 

Fifth and 
Sixth Cent 

Fuel Tax 
Trust 

$ 
(60,000)
(60,000) 

Road 
Improvement 

$ 

Industrial 
Park Trust 

$ 

Totals 

$ 373,210 
(8.746.954)
(8,373,744) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses (8,686,954) (273,082) (147,688) 3,998 (9,103,726) 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

Fund balances at end of year 

8,686,954 

$ 

947.126 

$ 674.044 

260,077 

$ 112,389 

90.451 

$ 94,449 

9,984.608 

$ 880.882 

See notes to financial statements. 
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SINGLE AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE 
SECTION 



COLUMBIA COUNTY. FLORIDA 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL AYARDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

1997 Fund Balance 
Award Reported in Fund Balance Revenue September 30, 

GrantorLProgram Title CFDA# Grant Number Amount Prior Years October 1, 1996 Match Recognized Exr2enditures 1997 

I STATE FINANCIAL AWARDS 
Department of Co1T1Tiunity Affairs 

Hazardous Yaste Grant 
Evaluation and Appraisal Report 

Program Assistance 

97CP-3V-03-22-22-007 *$ 

* 

2,867 

14,069 

$ $ $ $ 2,867 

14,069 

$ 2,867 

14,069 

$ 

Department of State - Division of 
Library and Information Services 

State aid to Libraries 
Operating 
Equalization 

97-ST-08 
97-ST-08 
94-ST-08 
95-ST-08 
96-ST-08 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

339,590 
40,494 

351,325 
309,303 
454,233 

351,325 
309,303 
454,233 

84,842 
309,303 
454,233 

339,590 
40,494 

339,590 
40,494 
49,734 35,108 

309,303 
454,233 

Department of Environmental Protection 
Recycling and Education Grant 
Yaste Tire Grant 
Small County Grant 
Litter and Marine Litter 

RE-97-10 
YT-97-12 
SC-97-04 
LC-97-10 

* 
* 
* 
* 

118,929 
30,020 
50,000 
10,000 

107,892 
30,020 
50,000 
4,998 

107,892 
30,020 
50,000 
4,998 

Department of Health &Rehabilitative 
Services 

Emergency Medical Services County 
Grant Program 

Emergency Medical Services 
C-96-12 
M-5029 

* 
* 

16,492 
225,000 

16,492 16,492 

Department of Agriculture &Consumer Services 
Mosquito Grant 
Rural Co1T1Tiunity Fire Protection 

* 
* 

26,600 
1,600 

26,600 
1,600 

26,600 
1,600 

Office of State Court Administrator 
Grant in aid - Family Medication * 14,246 14,246 14,246 

Office of Governor 
Office of Tourism, Trade, and 

Economic Development 
Total state financial awards 
Total all financial awards 

96/9712A * 163,629 
2, 168,397 

$3,159,298 
1,114,861 

$1,211,804 $ 
848,378 
848,378 $ 26,426 

98,713 
747,581 

$1,580,936 

98,713 
797,315 

$1,649,813 $ 
798 644 
798,644 

* State grants and aids appropriation under Section 216.349, Florida Statutes. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the component unit general purpose financial statements of the 
Columbia County Board of County Commissioners, the primary government of Columbia 
County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, and have issued 
our report thereon dated July 24, 1998. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditjng Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance - As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Columbia 
County Board of County Commissioners' financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with these provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required 
to be reported under Government Aud;t;ng Standards. However, we noted certain 
immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to management of the 
Columbia County Board of County Cammi ssi oners in a separate letter dated July 24, 
1998, on pages 2 - 55 - 2 - 57. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - In planning and performing our audit, 
we considered the Columbia County Board of County Cammi ssi oners' internal contra l 
over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide 
assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration 
of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose 
all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be 
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to 
a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be 
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not 
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal 
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal 
control over financial reporting that we have reported to the management of the 
Columbia County Board of County Cammi ssi oners in a separate letter dated July 24,
1998, on pages 2 - 55 - 2 - 57. 

This report is intended for the information of management, the Columbia County
Board of County Commissioners, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass­
through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

~~~ 
July 24, 1998 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE Willi REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND IN INTERNAL CONlROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE Willi 0MB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Columbia County, Florida 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the Columbia County Board of County
Commissioners with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. 
Office of Management and Bucfget (0MB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that 
are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended September 30,
1997. The Columbia County Board of County Commissioners' major federal program
is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the 
responsibility of the Columbia County Board of County Commi ssi oners' management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Columbia County Board of 
County Commissioners' compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-
133, Audits of States. Local Governments. and Non-Profit Organizations. Those 
standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about the Columbia County Board of County Commissioners' 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Columbia County Board of County Commissioners' compliance
with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Columbia County Board of County Commissioners complied, in 
all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are 
applicable to its major federal program for the year ended September 30, 1997. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the Columbia County Board of County Commissioners is 
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to a federal program. In planning and performing our audit, we 
considered the Columbia County Board of County Commissioners' internal control 
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on the 
internal control over compliance in accordance with 0MB Circular A-133. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY. FLORIDA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 

For the Fiscal year Ended September 30, 1997 

Section I. Sununary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statement 

Types of auditor's report issued Unqualified 

Internal control over financial 
Material weakness identified? 

reporting: 
No 

Reportable condition identified 
not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes 

Noncompliance material on financial 
statements noted? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness identified? No 
Reportable condition identified 

not considered to be material weaknesses? None reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 
Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? No 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program 

14.228 Community Development Block Grant­
Economic Development 

Section II. Financial Statement Findings 

#97-1. In accordance with the terms of the "Participating Party Agreement"
entered into by the Board of County Commissioners with AeroCorp, a private
corporation, AeroCorp was to contribute $611,975 toward the cost of the project
funded by the above CDBG grant. At the time of audit, the Board of County
Commissioners had billed, but had not received full payment for this 
contribution, although the project was completed in August, 1997, eight months 
earlier. During this period, County funds have been utilized to fund this 
receivable from AeroCorp. Subsequent to completion of the audit, these funds 
were received from AeroCorp. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO 

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the component unit general purpose financial statements of 
Columbia County Board of County Commissioners, the primary government of Columbia 
County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, and have issued 
our report thereon dated July 24, 1998. 

We conducted our audit of compliance with those requirements in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

Compliance with laws, regul ati ans, contracts and grants applicable to the 
Columbia County Board of County Commissioners is the responsibility of Columbia 
County Board of County Cammi ssi oners' management. As part of obtaining
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of the Columbia County Board of County
Commissioners' compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants including those applicable to state grants and aids 
appropriations identified in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State 
Awards, pursuant to Section 216.349, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 10.660, Rules 
of the Auditor General. However, the objective of our audit of the financial 
statements was not to provide an opinion on overa11 compliance with such 
provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are 
required to be reported herein under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of County
Commissioners, and all applicable state agencies. However, this report is a 
matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

~Eltf1ls~ 
July 24, 1998 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Columbia County, Florida 

In planning and performing our audit of the component unit general purpose
financial statements of the Columbia County Board of County Commissioners, the 
primary government of Columbia County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 
1997, we considered the Columbia County Board of County Commissioners' internal 
control structure to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance 
on the internal control structure. 

However, during our audit we became aware of several matters that are 
opportunities for strengthening internal controls and operating efficiencies. 
In addition to furnishing information required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the 
Auditor General, and other compliance matters, the remaining sections of this 
report letter discuss these findings. 

IMMATERIAL INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE FINDINGS 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

Fixed Asset Records - Chapter 10.400, Rules of the Auditor General, provide
detailed procedures for maintenance of County fixed asset property records 
including required information on each item of property, maintenance of general
ledger contra l accounts, disposition procedures, and annual inventory procedures. 
From our review of the Board's fixed asset records, in both the current and prior 
years we noted the following: 

1. From our review of the Board's property records, we found where certain 
items purchased during the year had not been added to the fixed asset 
records at the time of our audit. 

2. The year end inventory is not conducted by persons other than the property
custodians, and there is not a formal reconciliation performed between the 
physical and book inventories, with all differences investigated and 
corrected as appropriate. 

Subsequent to year end, the Board amended its property record accountability
procedures to fully comply with the above provisions of Chapter 10.440, Rules of 
the Auditor Genera 1. 

All other prior year findings were cleared during the current year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

Mobile Telephone Bills - From our review of selected mobile telephone billings, 
we could not find where all monthly billings for mobile telephone were reviewed 
for personal calls and where all such calls were reimbursed to the Board. To 
strengthen internal controls, we recommend that the employees assigned mobile 
telephones review monthly billings for personal calls, and reimburse the Board 
for the cost of any calls made. 
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CONCLUSION - We have reviewed each of our specific findings with the appropriate
County officials or employees and have provided them with appropriate
documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed the challenges and experiences
associated with this year's audit of the County. We appreciate the progress the 
Board and County Officers are making on improving the prior noted weaknesses and 
reaffirm our desire to assist in these endeavors. We also appreciated the 
continued helpful assistance of all County employees in completing this year's
audit. 

Sincerely, 

POWELL &JONES 

~c~ 
Richard C. Powell 
Certified Public Accountant 
July 24, 1998 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying component unit general purpose financial 
statements of the Columbia County Clerk of the Circuit Court, a component unit 
of Columbia County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, as 
listed in the preceding table of contents. These general purpose financial 
statements are the respons i bi l i ty of the County's management. Our respons i bi l i ty 
is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on 
our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Aud;ting
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we pl an and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the component unit general purpose financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Columbia County Clerk of the Circuit Court, a component unit of Columbia County,
Florida, as of September 30, 1997, and the results of its operations for the year
then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The combining financial statements listed 
in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the 
Columbia County Clerk of the Circuit Court. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial 
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in 
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated July 9, 1998, on our consideration of the Columbia County Clerk of the 
Circuit Court's internal control over financial reporting and our tests on its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

~fir~ 
POWELL &JONES 
July 9, 1998 



COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF lHE CIRCUIT COURT 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 .. 

Special
Revenue 

General Fund Fund 

REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 

$ 791,234 
29.901 

$ 28,580 
1.921 

Total revenues 821.135 30,501 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expenditures

General government 1,170,406 7,540
Capital outlay

General government 13,571 29,122
Debt service 

General government 5.351 1.070 
Total expenditures 1.189.328 37.732 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures (368.193) (7,231) 

OlllER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from other 

governmental units 368.193 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures - (7,231) 

Fund balances at beginning
of year 50.141 

Fund balances at end of year $ $ 42.910 

See notes to financial statements. 

Totals 
(Memorandum

Only) 

$ 819,814 
31,822 

851.636 

1,177,946 

42,693 

6.421 
1.227. 060 

(375.424) 

368,193 

(7,231) 

50.141 
$ 42.910 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

General Fund 
Variance 

SQecial Revenue Fund 
Variance 

Favorable Favorable 
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from other 

governmental units $ 358.639 $ 368.193 $ 9.554 $ $ $ 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures (7,231) (7,231) 

Fund balances at beginning
of year

Fund balances at end of 
50.141 50.141 

year $ $ $ $ 42.910 $ 42.910 $ 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF 11-IE CIRCUIT COURT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 1997 

NOTE 1. 11-IE REPORTING ENTITY 

Columbia County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and,
accordingly, is subject to restrictions imposed by the Florida Constitution and 
Statutes, as well as by its own ordinances. The County is governed by a board 
of five elected County Commissioners. Additionally, certain functions of county 
government are operated in a fiduciary capacity by five elected Constitutional 
Officers. These officers are the Cl erk of the Circuit Court, Property Appraiser, 
Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections and Tax Col.lector. The duties of these 
individual officers and the laws regulating the operations of their offices are 
also detailed in the Florida Constitution and Statutes. 

NOTE. 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A summary of the Clerk's significant accounting policies is presented to assist 
the reader in understanding and interpreting the accompanying financial 
statements. 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the Clerk of the Circuit Court are organized on the basis of 
funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditures. Government resources are allocated to and accounted 
for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent
and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are 
grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into three generic fund 
types and two broad fund categories as follows: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
(

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Clerk of the 
Circuit Court. It is used to account for all financial resources not properly
accounted for in any other fund. 

Special Revenue Fund· Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources which are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes. As of September 30, 1997, the Clerk of the Circuit Court 
maintained the Public Records Modernization Trust Fund, as a special revenue 
fund. · 
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The collateral for the Clerk's deposits is categorized to give an indication of 
the level of risk assumed by the Cl erk at year end. Category 1 includes deposits
that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the Clerk 
or his agent in the Cl erk' s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered
deposits for which the securities are held by the counterparty' s trust department 
or agent in the Clerk's name. Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered
deposits for which the securities are held by the counterparty' s trust department 
or agent, but not in the Clerk's name. All of the collateral covering the 
Clerk's deposits was Category 1. 

E. Inventories 
It is the policy of the Clerk of the Circuit Court to record the acquisition of 
supplies as expenditures at the time of purchase. The amount of supplies on hand 
at any one time would be a nominal amount and considered to be immaterial. 

F. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations are accounted for in the 
General Fixed Asset Group of Accounts, except for its infrastructure fixed assets 
which the County has elected not to report. All fixed assets acquired by
purchase are recorded at hi stori cal cost. Donated assets are recorded at 
estimated fair market value at the date donated. No depreciation has been 
provided on the County's general fixed assets. Assets purchased by the Clerk of 
the Circuit Court are reported in the County's General Fixed Asset Account Group. 

G. Compensated Absences 
Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as 
vacation and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that are 
attri butable to services al ready rendered and that are not contingent on a 
specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees 

.is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences 
that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that 
is outside the control of the government and its employees are accounted for in 
the period in which such services are rendered or such events take place. 

Compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with expendable available 
financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund 
that will pay for them. The remainder of the compensated absences liability is 
reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group of the Board of County
Commissioners. 

H. Total Column ·on the Combined Statements 
The total column on the combined statements is captioned "Memorandum Only" to 
indicate that it is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in 
this column does not present financial position, results of operations, or 
changes in cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, nor is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund 

. eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

NOTE 3. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

All Columbia County full-time employees participate in the Florida Retirement 
System ("the System"). a multiple-employer public employee retirement system.
The payro11 for Cl erk employees covered by the System for the year ended 
September 30, 1997, was $717,981; this figure also represents the total payroll. 

3 · 8 



NOTE 4. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Balances at September 30, 1997, were: 
Interfund Interfund 

Receivables Payables
General Fund $ 42,426 $ 372 
Domestic Relations 10,186 
Public Defender Occupancy Trust 100 
Public Records Modernization 

Trust 3,816
Registry of Court 671 
Trust 34.913 

$ 46,242 $46.242 

NOTE 5. LONG-TERM DEBT 

Capital Lease 

The Clerk of the Circuit Court has an installment payment agreement with Lanier 
Worldwide, Inc. for the purchase of a copier costing $17,142. The agreement
calls for thirty-six monthly payments of $535, which includes interest at 7.73%. 

This fo11 owing is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under the above 
capital lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at 
September 30, 1997: 

September 30, 
1998 $4,816

Less: amount representing interest (152)
Present value of future minimum 

lease payments $4,664 

Changes in Long-Term Debt 

During the year ended September 30, 1997, the following occurred in liabilities 
reported in the general long-term debt account group: 

Balance Balance 
October 1, September 30, 

1996 Additions Retirements 1997 
Capital lease $ 10. 942 $ $ 6,278 $ 4,664 

NOTE 6. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Clerk is defendant in certain threatened litigation. Although the outcome 
of this action is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the Clerk's 
counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect 
on the financial condition of the Clerk. 
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COMBINING STATEMENTS 



AGENCY FUNDS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF TIIE CIRCUIT COURT 

AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 .· 

Balance Balance 

DOMESTIC RELATIONS FUND 
Oct. 11 1996 Additions Deductions Segt. 30 1 1997 

Assets 
Cash 
Dishonored checks 

$ 10,790 $4,493,850 $4,490,936 $ 13,704 

receivable 
Due from individuals 

980 
234 

3,498 2,940 
234 

1,538 

Total assets $ 12,004 $4.497,348 $4,494,110 $ 15,242 

Liabilities 
Due to other 

governmental units 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

$ 1,359 
10,645

$ 12,004 

$ 17,770 
110,346

$ 128.116 

$ 14,073 
110,805

$ 124,878 

$ 

$ 

5,056 
10,186 
15,242 

JURY AND WITNESS FUND 
Assets 

Cash $ 207 $ 12.244 $ 11.710 $ 741 

Li abil i ti es 
Due to other 

governmental units $ 207 $ 12,244 $ 11,710 $ 741 

PUBLIC DEFENDER OCCUPANCY TRUST FUND 
Assets 

Cash $ 7,926
Due from other funds 360 

Total assets $ 8,286 

$ 94,655 

$ 94.655 

$ 94,154 
360 

$ 94,514 

$ 

$ 

8,427 

8,427 

Liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Due to Public Defender 

Total liabilities 

$ 
8,286

$ 8,286 

$ 100 
94,195

$ 94.295 

$ 
94.154 

$ 94,154 

$ 

$ 

100 
8,327 
8,427 

REGISTRY OF COURT FUND 
Assets 

Cash $ 117.016 $1,623,232 $1.613.861 $ 126.387 

Liabilities 
Due to other funds $ 212 $ 459 $ $ 671 
Deposits held in escrow 108,037 1,620,646 1,614,437 114,246 
Interest payable 8.767 4,138 1.435 11,470 

Total liabilities $ 117.016 $1,625.243 $1,615,872 $ 126,387 
(continued) 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 . 

Balance 
Oct. 1, 1996 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
Sept. 30, 1997 

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
Assets 

Cash 
Dishonored checks 

receivable 
Due from other funds 
Due from individuals 
State documentary 

stamp inventory
Total assets 

$ 553,306 

3,835
1,980 

234 

6,000 
$ 565,355 

$10,312,174 

11,424 

565 

$10,324,163 

$10,329,406 

9,733
1,980 

234 

6,000
$10,347,353 

$ 536,074 

5,526 

565 

$ 542,165 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 1,108 $ 3,344,175 $ 3,344,127 $ 1,156
Court fees payable 85,752 695,259 726,088 54,923
Deposits held in escrow 108,037 1,620,646 1,614,437 114,246
Due to other funds 39,971 492,924 487,025 45,870
Due to other 

governmental units 276,770 2,946,183 2,959,397 263,556
Due to Public Defender 8,286 94,195 94,154 8,327
Interest payable 8,767 4,138 1,435 11,470
Juvenile installments 1,214 13,503 13,566 1,151
Suspense liability 11,235 323,462 319,461 15,236
Tax deeds sales 9,874 32,498 31,374 10,998
Retirement funds 6ayable 8,292 2,345 2,500 8,137
Installments paya le 6,049 1,046 7,095

Total liabilities $ 565,355 $ 9,570,374 $ 9,593,564 $ 542,165 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COMPLIANCE SECTION. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONlROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE Wini GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the component unit general purpose financial statements of the 
Columbia County Clerk of the Circuit Court, a component unit of Columbia County,
Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, and have issued our 
report thereon dated July 9, 1998. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. 

Comp1i ance - As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Columbia 
County Clerk of the Circuit Court's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an ob­
jective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - In planning and performing our audit, 
we considered the Columbia County Clerk of the Circuit Court's internal control 
over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide 
assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration 
of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose 
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to 
a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be 
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not 
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of per­
forming their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal 
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information of management, Clerk of the Circuit 
Court of Columbia County, and the Board of County Commissioners. However, this 
report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

~I~ 
July 9, 1998 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Honorable Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Columbia County, Florida 

In planning and performing our audit of the component unit general purpose
financial statements of the Columbia County Clerk of the Circuit Court, a 
component unit of Columbia County, Florida, for the year ended September 30,
1997, we considered the Office's internal control structure to determine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the general 
purpose fi nanci a1 statements and not to provide assurance on the i nterna 1 contra1 
structure. 

However, during our audit we became aware of matters that are opportunities for 
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiencies. In addition to 
furnishing information required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General,
and other compliance matters, the remaining sections of this report letter 
discuss these findings. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

All prior year findings were cleared during the year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

Cash Receipts - During our audit of cash receipts, we noted that the cashier was 
able to void vouchers without prior approval. In order to strengthen controls 
over cash receipts, we recommend that all voided vouchers have prior approval
from a responsible official whose duties do not relate to cash collections. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF UNITS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT - The financial report for the year
ended September 30, 1997, filed with the Department of Banking and Finance 
pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the audited 
financial statements. The financial statements of the Clerk of the Circuit Court 
are combined with other County agencies in that report. 

FINANCIAL EMERGENCY STATUS - Nothing came to our attention that caused us to 
believe that the Clerk of the Circuit Court is, or during the fiscal year was, 
in a state of financial emergency as a consequence of conditions in Section 
218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 

PUBLIC RECORDS MODERNIZATION lRUST FUND - The Cl erk of the Circuit Court comp1ied 
with Section 28.24(15)(d), Florida Statutes, regarding the collection and use of 
Public Records Modernization Trust Fund moneys. 

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be 
reported under the Rules of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.544(1)(f). 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Property Appraiser 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the accompany; ng component unit general purpose financial 
statements of the Columbia County Property Appraiser, a component unit of 
Columbia County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, as 
listed in the preceding table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, ; ssued by the Comptro11 er General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we pl an and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the component unit general purpose financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Co1umbi a County Property Appraiser, a component unit of Columbia County, Florida, 
as of September 30, 1997, and the results of its operations for the year then 
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with-Governmental Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated June 24, 1998, on our consideration of the Columbia County Property
Appraiser's internal control over financial reporting on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. 

( 

~.f,{)-~
POWELL & fUs- . 
June 24, 1998 



COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

PROPERlY APPRAISER 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET -
. ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

September 30, 1997 

Governmental 
Fund Tyge 

General Fund 

Account 
GrouQ

General 
Long-Term

Debt 

Totals 
(Memorandum

Only) 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Other Debits 

Amount to be provided
for debt service 

Total assets 

$ 15,440 

$ 151440 

$ 

241925 
$ 241925 

$ 15,440 

241925 
$ 401365 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Due to other governmental
units 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Note payable

Total liabilities 

$ 15,440 

$ 151440 

$ 

241925 
$ 241925 

$ 15,440 

241925 
$ 401365 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

PROPERTY APPRAISER 

GENERAL FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Budget Actual 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures $ $ 

Fund balance at beginning
of year

Fund balance at end of year =$=== $ 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 

$ 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

PROPERTY APPRAISER 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 1997 

NOTE 1. THE REPORTING ENTilY 

Columbia County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and,
accordingly, is subject to restrictions imposed by the Florida Constitution and 
Statutes, as well as by its own ordinances. The County is governed by a board 
of five elected County Commissioners. Additionally, certain functions of county 
government are operated in a fiduciary capacity by five elected Constitutional 
Officers. These officers are the Cl erk of the Circuit Court, Property Appraiser, 
Sheri ff, Supervisor of Elections and Tax Co11 ector. The duties of these 
individual officers and the laws regulating the operations of their offices are 
also detailed in the Florida Constitution and Statutes. 

NOTE. 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A summary of the Property Appraiser's significant accounting policies is 
presented to assist the reader in understanding and interpreting the accompanying
financial statements. 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the Property Appraiser are organized on the basis of funds and 
account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The 
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in 
individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the 
means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are 
grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into one generic fund type
and one broad fund category as follows: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND .. 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Property
Appraiser. It is used to account for all financial resources not properly
accounted for in any other fund. 

ACCOUNT GROUPS 

The General Long-Term Debt Account Group is used to establish accounting control 
and accountability over the debt of the Property Appraiser's office. This 
account group is not a fund, but is rather a financial reporting devise designed 
to provide accountability for certain liabilities that are not recorded in the 
funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial 
resources. 
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In the governmental funds, compensated absences that are expected to be 
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as an 
expenditure and fund liability in the fund that wi 11 pay for them. The remainder ·· 
of the compensated absences liability is reported in the General Long-Term Debt 
Account Group of the Board of County Commissioners. 

NOTE 3. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

All Columbia County full-time employees participate in the Florida Retirement 
System ("the System"), a multiple-employer public employee retirement system.
The payroll for Property Appraiser employees covered by the System for the year
ended September 30, 1997, was $378,219: this figure also represents the total 
payroll. 

Membership is compulsory for all full-time and part-time employees working in a 
regularly established position for Columbia County. Elected County officials may
elect not to participate in the System. 

The Florida Retirement System provides vesting of benefits after ten years of 
creditable service, eight years for Elected State and County Officers' Class 
(ESCOC), or seven years for Senior Management Service Class (SMSC). Members are 
eligible for normal retirement when they have met the minimum requirements for 
their specific class of membership. Early retirement may be taken any time after 
vesting: however, there is a 5% benefit reduction for each year prior to normal 
retirement age. 

Benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and 
service credit. Average final compensation is the average of the five highest
fiscal years of earnings. Members may select one of four benefit options at 
retirement. The System also provides death and disability benefits. 

Retirement coverage is employee noncontributory. Employers pay all contri · 
butions. Rates are based on class of membership. The contribution requirement
for the year ended September 30, 1997, was $75,687, which represents 20.0% of 
covered payroll. 

The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized measure of the present value 
of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases,
estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. 
The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and is 
intended to help users (1) assess the Florida Retirement Systems' funding status 
on a going-concern-basis, (2) assess progress in accumulating sufficient assets 
to pay benefits when due, and (3) make comparisons among Public Employee
Retirement Systems. The measure is independent of and should not be confused 
with the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the System. 

At June 30, 1997, the unfunded pension benefit obligation for the State of 
Florida Retirement System, determined through an actuarial valuation performed 
as of that date was $(1.958) billion, as follows: 

Billions 
Pension Benefits Obligation $ 54.263 
Net Assets Available for 

Benefits at Amortized Cost 56.221 
Unfunded Pension Benefit Obligation $ (1. 958) 
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COMPLIANCE SECTION. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITII GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Property Appraiser 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the component unit general purpose financial statements of the 
Columbia County Property Appraiser, a component unit of Columbia County, Florida, 
as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, and have issued our report
thereon dated June 24, 1998. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. 

Compliance - As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Columbia 
County Property Appraiser's financial statements are free of material misstate­
ment, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. How­
ever, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - In planning and performing our audit 
we considered the Columbia County Property Appraiser's internal control over 
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provi de 
assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration 
of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose 
all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be 
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to 
a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be 
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not 
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters i nvol vi ng the internal 
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of County
Commissioners, and Property Appraiser of Columbia County. However, this report
is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

~~ 
June 24, 1998 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Honorable Property Appraiser 
Columbia County, Florida 

In planning and performing our audit of the component unit general purpose
financial statements of the Columbia County Property Appraiser, a component unit 
of Columbia County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 1997, we considered 
the Office's internal control structure to determine our auditing procedures for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the general purpose financial statements 
and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. 

This letter furnishes information required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the 
Auditor General. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS - All prior year findings were cleared during the current 
year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS - There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF UNITS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT - The financial report for the year
ended September 30, 1997, filed with the Department of Banking and Finance 
pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the audited 
financial statements. The financial statements of the Property Appraiser are 
combined with other County Agencies in that report. 

FINANCIAL EMERGENCY STATUS - Nothing came to our attention that caused us to 
believe that the Property Appraiser is, or during the fi seal year was, in a state 
of financial emergency as a consequence of conditions in Section 218.503(1),
Florida Statutes. 

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be 
reported under the Rules of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.544(l)(f). 

CONCLUSION - ·We have reviewed information regarding our audit with the Property
Appraiser and have provided appropriate documentation as requested. We very much 
enjoyed the challenges and experiences associated with this year's examination 
of the County. We appreciate the helpful assistance of all County employees in 
completing this year's audit. 

Sincerely, 

POWELL &JONES 

~c~ 
Richard C. Powell 
Certified Public Accountant 
June 24, 1998 
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Richard C. Powell, Jr., CPP, 

Madan Jones Powell, CF'/\ 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Sheriff 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying component unit general purpose financial 
statements of the Columbia County Sheriff, a component unit of Columbia County,
Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, as listed in the 
preceding table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the component unit general purpose financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Columbia County Sheriff, a component unit of Columbia County, Florida, as of 
September 30, 1997, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated July 17, 1998, on our consideration of the Columbia County Sheriff's 
internal control over financial reporting and our tests on its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose.
financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and i ndi vi dual fund 
financial statements listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose
financial statements of the Columbia County Sheriff. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material 
respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

~~ 
July 17, 1998 



COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

September 30, 1997 

Governmental 

General 
Fund 

Fund Tyges
Special
Revenue 

Funds 

Fiduciary
Fund Tyges
Trust and 

Agency
Funds 

Account Groug
General 
Fixed 

Assets 

Totals 
(Memorandum

Only} 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Due from other 

$ 378,074 $ 44,698 $125,120 $ $ 547,892 

governments
Inventories 

General Fixed Assets 

31,699 
4,825 

31,699 
4,825 

Equipment
Total assets $ 409,773 $ 49,523 $125,120 

2,216,146 
$2,216,146 

2,216,146 
$2,800,562 

LIABILITIES AND FUND 
EQUITY
LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable
Due to other 

$ 249,849. $ 1,505 $ $ $ 251,354 

governments
Cash bonds 

159,924 94 160,018 

liability
Individual 

64,864 64,864 

depositors
liability

Due to individuals 
Total liabilities 409,773 1,505 

13,632 
46,530 

125,120 

13,632 
46,530 

536,398 
FUND EQUITY

Undesignated fund 
balance 

Investment in 
48,018 48,018 

general fixed 
assets 

Total fund equity 48,018 
2,216,146 
2,216,146 

2,216.146 
2,264,164 

Total liabilities 
and fund equity $ 409,773 $ 49,523 $125,120 $2,216,146 $2,800,562 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

\ 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

General Fund SQecial Revenue Funds 
Variance Variance 
Favorable Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES 

Charges for services $ $ $ $ 74,143 $ 74,143 $ 
Fines and forfeitures 4,560 4,560
Miscellaneous 651663 651663 

Total revenues 1441366 1441366 

EXPENDITURES 
Current Expenditures

Public safety 6,077,094 6,007,773 69,321 120,003 120,003
Capital Outlay

Public safety 2231069 2191719 31350 491546 491546 
Total expenditures 613001631 61227 A92 721671 1691549 1691549 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures (613001163) <61221 A92) 721671 (251183) (251183) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from other 

governments 613001163 61227 A92 (72,671) 

(continued) 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 1997 

NOTE 1. THE REPORTING ENTITY 

Columbia County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and,
accordingly, is subject to restrictions imposed by the Florida Constitution and 
Statutes, as well as by its own ordinances. The County is governed by a board 
of five elected County Commissioners. Additionally, certain functions of county 
government are operated in a fiduciary capacity by five elected Constitutional 
Officers. These officers are the Cl erk of the Circuit Court, Property Appraiser, 
Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections and Tax Collector. The duties of these 
individual officers and the laws regulating the operations of their offices are 
also detailed in the Florida Constitution and Statutes. 

NOTE. 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Asummary of the Sheri ff' s si gni fi cant accounting policies is presented to assist 
the reader in understanding and interpreting the accompanying financial 
statements. · 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the Sheriff are organized on the basis of funds and account 
groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations
of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.
Government resources are a11 ocated to and atcounted for in i ndi vi dual funds based 
upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the financial 
statements in this report, into two generic fund types and two broad fund 
categories as follows: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

General Fund· The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Sheriff. 
It is used to account for all financial resources not properly accounted for in 
any other fund. 

Special Revenue Funds · Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the 
collection and disbursement of earmarked revenues utilized in the general
activities of a government. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Agency Funds· Agency Funds are required and used by the Sheriff to account for 
resources received from and disbursed to other governmental units, other funds 
of Columbia County and individuals. The Sheriff functions purely as an agent for 
others in the maintenance of these funds. 
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Bank Deposit Category Bank 
Covered By 1 2 3 Balance 

Eligible Collateral 
FDIC Insurance 

$ 324,603 
2231289 

$ $ $ 324,603 
2231289 

Total Deposits $ 5471892 $ $ $ 5471892 

E. Inventories 

It is the policy _of the Sheriff to record the acquisition of supplies as 
expenditures at the time of purchase. The amount of supplies on hand at any one 
time would be a nominal amount and considered to be immaterial. 

F. Property1 Plant and Equipment 

Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations are accounted for in the 
General Fixed Assets Group of Accounts, except for its infrastructure fixed 
assets which the County has elected not to report. All fixed assets acquired by
purchase are recorded at historical cost. Donated assets are recorded at 
estimated fair market value at the date donated. No depreciation has been 
provided on the Sheriff's general fixed assets. 

G. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as 
vacation and sick 1eave. A 1i abi 1i ty for compensated absences that are 
attri butable to services a1ready rendered and that are not contingent on a 
specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees
is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences 
that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that 
is outside the control of the government and its employees are accounted for in 
the period in which such services are rendered or such events take place. 

In the governmental funds, compensated absences that are expected to be 
1i qui dated with expendab1e avai 1ab1e fi nanci a1 resources are reported as an 
expenditure and fund liability in the fund of the Board of County Commissioners 
that will pay for them. The remainder of the compensated absences liability is 
reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. 

H. Total Column on the Combined Statements 

The total column on the combined statements is captioned "Memorandum Only" to 
indicate that it is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in 
this column does not present financial position, results of operations, or 
changes in cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, nor is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund 
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

NOT£ 3. CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows: 

Balance Balance 
10/01/96 Additions Deletions 09/30/97

Equipment $ 210431174 $ 2811879 $ 1081907 $ 212161146 
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The ten year historical trend information showing the System's progress in 
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is not presently
available. Historical trend information, commencing with the fiscal year 1986-
87, is presented in the Florida Retirement System's June 30, 1997, comprehensive
annual financial report. 

NOTE 5. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Sheriff is defendant in various pending or threatened litigation. Although
the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of 
the Sheriff's counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial condition of the Sheriff. 

NOTE 6. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Sheriff participates in various public entity risk pools for certain of its 
insurance coverages. Under these insurance risk pools, the Sheriff entity risk 
pool pays annual premiums to the pools for its insurance coverages. The 
agreements for formation of the pools provide that the pools wi 11 be self­
sustaining through member premi urns and wi 11 rei nsure through commercial companies
for claims in excess of specific amounts. 

The Sheriff continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. 
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The pooling agreements allow for the pools to make additional assessments to make 
the pools self-sustaining. It is not possible to estimate the amount of such 
additional assessments, which might have to be paid by the Sheriff. 

The pooling agreements require the pool to be self-sustaining. It is not 
possible to estimate the amount of losses, which might have to be borne by the 
Sheriff. 

NOTE 7. EQUIPMENT RENTAL 

The Sheriff has rental agreements with Xerox Corporation for two copiers. The 
agreements call for monthly rental payments of $245 and $380 for a thirty-six
month period. 

For the year ended September 30, 1997, the Sheriff paid $7,500 for the above 
rentals. 

Future rental payments under the above agreements are as follows: 

September 30 Amount 
1998 $ 6,360 
1999 2,450 

$ 8,810 
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GENERAL FUND 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 

GENERAL FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 

September 30, 1997 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Due from other governmental units 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable
Due to other governmental units 

Total liabilities 

$ 378,074 
31,699 

$409,773 

$ 249,849 
159.924 

$ 409,773 

See notes to financial statements. 

5 - 11 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 

GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Budget Actual 
Sheriff communications 

Personal services 
Operating expenses

Total Sheriff communications 

$ 344,832 
25,636 

370A68 

$ 307,112 
18,021 

325,133 

DARE Enhancement 
Personal services 
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total DARE Enhancement 

40,165 
13,848 
29,147 
83,160 

40,146 
14,951 
27,525 
82,622 

Sheriff Special Services 
Personal services 
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total Sheriff special services 

315,087 
39,063 
7 749 

361.899 

290,291 
35,484 
7 749 

333,524 

Detention and correction 
Personal services 
Operating expenses
Capital outlay

Total detention and correction 
Total expenditures 

1,801,117 
441,783 
31,486 

2,274,386 
6,300,163 

1,680,050 
583,357 

1,787 
2,265,194 
6,227,492 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (6,300,163) (6,227,492) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from other governments 6,300,163 6,227,492 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources 
over expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning
of year

Fund balance at end of year $ $ 

See notes to financial statements. 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable} 

$ 37,720 
7,615 

45,335 

19 
(1,103)
1,622 

538 

24,796 
3,579 

28,375 

121,067
(141,574)

29,699 
9,192 

72,671 

72,671 

(72,671) 

$ 
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COMBINING STATEMENTS 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Minimum 
Standards 
School 

$ 
4,560 
11706 
6,266 

Sheriff 
Inmate Welfare 

$ 74,143 

63,957 
138.100 

$ 

Totals 

74,143 
4,560 

65,663 
144,366 

EXPENDITURES 
Current Expenditures

Public safety
Capital Outlay

Public safety
Total expenditures 

16,829 

16,829 

103,174 

49,546 
152,720 

120,003 

49,546 
169,549 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (10,563) (14,620) (25,183) 

Fund balances at beginning of year 13,355 59,846 73,201 

Fund balances at end of year $ 2,792 $ 45,226 $ 48,018 

See notes to financial statements. 
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AGENCY FUNDS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 

AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997. 

INMATE TRUST FUND 
Assets 

Cash 

Balance 
Oct. 11 1996 

$ 281469 

Additions 

$ 2041303 

Deductions 

$ 1861242 

Balance 
Sept. 30 1 1997 

$ 461530 

Liabilities 
Due to individuals $ 281469 $ 2041303 $ 1861242 $ 461530 

TRUST FUND 
Assets 

Cash 

Liabilities 
Cash bonds liability
Individual depositors

liability
Due to other governments

Total liabilities 

$ 691350 

$ 59,191 

320 
91839 

$ 691350 

$ 3661379 

$ 258,529 

119,026 
11663 

$ 3791218 

$ 3571139 

$ 252,856 

105,714 
111408 

$ 3691978 

$ 781590 

$ 64,864 

13,632 
94 

$ 781590 

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
Assets 

Cash $ 971819 $ 5701682 $ 5431381 $ 1251120 

Liabilities 
Cash bonds liability
Individual depositors

liability
Due to other 

governmental
Due to individuals 

Total liabilities 

$ 59,191 

320 

9,839 
281469 

$ 971819 

$ 258,529 

119,026 

1,663 
2041303 

$ 5831521 

$ 252,856 

105,714 

11,408 
1861242 

$ 5561220 

$ 64,864 

13,632 

94 
461530 

$ 1251120 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COMPLIANCE SECTION. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE Willi GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Sheriff 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the component unit general purpose financial statements of the 
Columbia County Sheriff, a component unit of Columbia County, Florida, as of and 
for the year ended September 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated 
July 17, 1998. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

Comp1 i ance - As part of obtaining reasonab1 e assurance about whether the Co1umbi a 
County Sheriff's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing 
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit 
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - In planning and performing our audit, 
we considered the Columbia County Sheriff's internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance 
on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the 
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose material 
weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation
of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in re­
lation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected 
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over 
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, we noted -other matters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting that we have reported to the management of the Co1umbi a County Sheri ff 
in a separate letter dated July 17, 1998, on pages 5-18 - 5-19. 

This report is intended for the information of management, Sheriff of Columbia 
County, and the Board of County Commissioners. This restriction is not intended 
to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 

~f~ 
July 17, 1998 
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MANAGEMENT LElTER 

Honorable Sheriff 
Columbia County, Florida 

In planning and performing our audit of the component unit general purpose
financial statements of the Columbia County Sheriff, a component unit of Columbia 
County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 1997, we considered the 
Office's internal control structure to determine our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the general purpose financial statements and 
not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. 

However, during our audit we became aware of several matters that are 
opportunities for strengthening internal controls and operating efficiencies. 
In addition to furnishing information required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the 
Auditor General, and other compliance matters, the remaining sections of this 
report letter discuss these findings. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

Payroll Disbursements - During our review of payroll disbursements, we found 
instances where it was not clear as to the documentation of time worked and 
various leave types taken for various classes of employees. We recommend that 
ti me sheets be reviewed by a supervisor to assure that a11 employees' pay
computations are properly made and documented. 

Accounts Payable - During our review of accounts payable, we noted immaterial 
instances where expenses that had not yet been actually incurred were listed in 
the year end accounts payables. Although it was clear that these instances were 
inadvertent, to more accurately record expenditures, we recommend that only those 
items or services received by year end be recorded as accounts payables. 

Inmate Commissary - During our review of the inmate commissary activity, we noted 
that revenues earned from the commissary were not regularly reviewed and 
reconciled, and transferred from the Inmate Trust Fund to the Inmate Welfare 
Fund. We recommend that the commissary activity report be reconciled monthly
with the Inmate Welfare Fund and that the income earned be transferred monthly 
to the Inmate Welfare Fund. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF UNITS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT - The financial report for the year
ended September 30, 1997, will be filed with the Department of Banking and 
Finance pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes. The financial statements 
of the Sheriff will be combined with other County agencies in that report. 

FINANCIAL EMERGENCY STATUS - Nothing came to our attention that caused us to 
believe that the Sheri ff is, or during the fi seal year was, in a state of 
financial emergency as a consequence of conditions in Section 218.503(1), Florida 
Statutes. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Supervisor of Elections 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying component unit general purpose financial 
statements of the Columbia County Supervisor of Elections, a component unit of 
Columbia County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, as 
listed in the preceding table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. ,_ 
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we pl an and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the component unit general purpose financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Columbia County Supervisor of Elections, a component unit of Columbia County,
Florida, as of September 30, 1997, and the results of its operations for the year
then ended in conformity with generally accep~ed accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated July 24, 1998, on our consideration of the Columbia County Supervisor of 
Elections internal control over financial reporting on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

~i,(),~
POWELL & Jo((s'­
July 24, 1998 



COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET· ALL FUND TYPES 

September 30, 1997 

Governmental 
Fund Type 

General Fund 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash $ 8,896 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Due to other governmental
units $ 8,896 

See notes to financial statements. 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 1998 

NOTE 1. lliE REPORTING ENTin' 

Columbia County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and,
accordingly, is subject to restrictions imposed by the Florida Constitution and 
Statutes, as well as by its own,ordinances. The County is governed by a board 
of five elected County Commissioners. Additionally, certain functions of county 
government are operated in a fiduciary capacity by five elected Constitutional 
Officers. These officers are the Cl erk of the Circuit Court, Property Appraiser, 
Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections and Tax Collector. The duties of these 
individual officers and the laws regulating the operations of their offices are 
also detailed in the Florida Constitution and Statutes. 

NOTE. 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A summary of the Supervisor of Elections' significant accounting policies is 
presented to assist the reader in understanding and interpreting the accompanying
financial statements. 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the Supervisor of Elections are organized on the basis of funds,
each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each 
fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.
Government resources are a11 ocated to and accounted for in i ndi vi dual funds based 
upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the financial 
statements in this report, into two generic fund types and two broad fund 
categories as follows: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Supervisor
of Elections. It is used to account for all financial resources not properly
accounted for in any other fund. 

FIDUCIARY FUND 

Agency Fund• Agency Funds are required and used by the Supervisor of Elections 
to account for resources received from and disbursed to other governmental units,
other funds of Columbia County and individuals. The Supervisor of Elections 
functions purely as an agent for others in the maintenance of the Fee Fund. 

The Fee Fund was not utilized during the current year.
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In the governmental funds, compensated absences that are expected to be 
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as an 
expenditure and fund liability in the fund that will pay for them. The remainder 
of the compensated absences liability is reported in the General Long-Term Debt 
Account Group of the Board of County Commissioners. 

H. Total-Column on the Combined Statements 
The total column on the combined statements is captioned "Memorandum Only" to 
indicate that it is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in 
this column does not present financial position, results of operations, or 
changes in cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, nor is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund 
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

NOTE 3. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

All Columbia County full-time employees participate in the Florida Retirement 
System ("the System"), a multiple-employer public employee retirement system.
The payroll for Supervisor of Elections employees covered by the System for the 
year ended September 30, 1997, was $130,357; the total payroll was $161,217. 

Membership is compulsory for all full-time and part-time employees working in a 
regularly established position for Columbia County. Elected County officials may
elect not to participate in the System. 

The Florida Retirement System provides vesting of benefits after ten years of 
creditable service, eight years for Elected State and County Officers' Class 
(ESCOC), or seven years for Senior Management Service Class (SMSC). Members are 
eligible for normal retirement when they have met the minimum requirements for 
their specific class of membership. Early retirement may be taken any time .after 
vesting; however, there is a 5% benefit reduction for each year prior to normal 
retirement age. 

Benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and 
service credit. Average final compensation is the average of the five highest
fiscal years of earnings. Members may select one of four benefit options at 
retirement. The System also provides death and disability benefits. 

Retirement coverage is employee noncontributory. Employers pay all 
contributions. Rates are based on class of membership. The contribution 
requirement for the year ended September 30, 1997, was $29,211, which represents
22.4% of covered payroll. 

The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized measure of the present value 
of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases,
estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. 
The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and is 
intended to help users (1) assess the Florida Retirement Systems' funding status 
on a going-concern basis, (2) assess progress in accumulating sufficient assets 
to pay benefits when due, and (3) make comparisons among Public Employee
Retirement Systems. The measure is independent of and should not be confused 
with the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the System. 

At June 30, 1997, the unfunded pension benefit obligation for the State of 
Florida Retirement System, determined through an actuarial valuation performed 
as of that date was $(1.958) billion, as follows: 
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COMPLIANCE SECTION· 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITII GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Supervisor of Elections 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the component unit general purpose financial statements of the 
Columbia County Supervisor of Elections, a component unit of Columbia County,
Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, and have issued our 
report thereon dated July 24, 1998. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. 

Compliance - As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Columbia 
County Supervisor of Elections' financial statements are free of material mis­
statement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. How­
ever, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - In planning and performing our audit 
we consider the Columbia County Supervisor of Elections' internal control over 
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide 
assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration 
of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose 
a11 matters in the internal contra l over financial reporting that might be 
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to 
a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be 
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not 
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal 
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of County
Commissioners, and Supervisor of Elections of Columbia County. However, this 
report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

~~ 
July 24, 1998 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Honorable Supervisor of Elections 
Columbia County, Florida 

In p1anni ng and performing our audit of the component unit genera1 purpose
financial statements of the Columbia County Supervisor of Elections, a component
unit of Columbia County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 1997, we 
considered the Office's internal control structure to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control 
structure. 

This letter furnishes information required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the 
Auditor Genera 1. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

All prior year findings were cleared during the year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF UNITS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT· The financial report for the year
ended September 30, 1997, fi 1ed with the Department of Banking and Finance 
pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the audited 
financial statements. The financial statements of the Supervisor of Elections 
are combined with other County Agencies in that report. 

FINANCIAL EMERGENCY STATUS· Nothing came to our attention that caused us to 
believe that the Supervisor of Elections is, or during the fiscal year was, in 
a state of financial emergency as a consequence of conditions in Section 
218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be 
reported under the Rules of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.544(1)(f). 

CONCLUSION - We have reviewed information regarding our audit with the Supervisor 
of Elections and have provided appropriate documentation as requested. We very
much enjoyed the challenges and experiences associated with this year's
examination of the County. We appreciate the helpful assistance of all County
employees in completing this year's audit. 

Sincerely, 

POWELL &JONES 

~~ 
Richard C. Powell 
Certified Public Accountant 
July 24, 1998 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Tax Collector 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying component unit general purpose financial 
statements of the Columbia County Tax Collector, a component unit of Columbia 
County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, as listed in 
the preceding table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we pl an and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material mis -
statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the component unit general purpose financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Columbia County Tax Collector, a component unit of Columbia County, Florida, as 
of September 30, 1997, and the results of its operations for the year then ended 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The combining financial statement listed 
in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Columbia 
County Tax Collector. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the 
general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated July 30, 1998, on our consideration of the Columbia County Tax Collector's 
internal control over financial reporting on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 

~t<l:~ 
POWELL & joNls-
July 30, 1998 



COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
' . 

TAX COLLECTOR 

GENERAL FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Budget Actual 
REVENUES 

Charges for services 
General government

County officer commissions 
and fees 

Professional and 
occupational

Motor vehicle fees 
Boat fees 
Other licenses and 

$ 1,897
217,499
14,659 

$ 1,897
217,499
14,659 

permits
State commissions 

14,586
435 

14,586
435 

Tax commissions 
Columbia County

Tax commissions 
190,917 190,917 

CCIDA 
Tax commissions 

2,012 2,012 

SRWMD 
Tax commissions 

16,621 16,621 

LSHA 
Delinquent tax 

commissions 
Commissions special 

assessment 
Special assessment 

administrative fees 
Advertising collections 

Total charges for services 

21,831 

67,282 

76,490 

48,594
877 

673,700 

21,831 

67,282 

76,490 

48,594
877 

673,700 

Miscellaneous 
Interest earnings

Interest county officers 
Tax Collector 

Other miscellaneous 
Total miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

9,609
3,882

13,491
687,191 

9,609
3,882

13,491 
687,191 

(continued) 
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COLUMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

TAX COLLECTOR 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 1997 

NUTE 1. llfE REPORTING ENTITY 

Columbia County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and,
accordingly, is subject to restrictions imposed by the Florida Constitution and 
Statutes, as well as by its own ordinances. The County is governed by a board 
of five elected County Commissioners. Additionally, certain functions of county 
government are operated in a fiduciary capacity by five elected Constitutional 
Officers. These officers are the Cl erk of the Circuit Court. Property Appraiser, 
Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections and Tax Collector. The duties of these 
individual officers and the laws regulating the operations of their offices are 
also detailed in the Florida Constitution and Statutes. 

NOTE. 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Asummary of the Tax Collector's significant accounting policies is presented_to
assist the reader in understanding and interpreting the accompanying financial 
statements. 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the Tax Collector are organized on the basis of funds and account 
groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations
of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based 
upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the financial 
statements in this report, into two generic fund types and two broad fund 
categories as follows: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

General Fund - The General Fund is the genera1 operating fund of the Tax 
Collector. It is used to account for all financial resources not properly
accounted for in any other fund. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Agency Funds · Agency Funds are required and used by the Tax Co11 ector to account 
for resources received from and disbursed to other governmental units, other 
funds of Columbia County and individuals. The Tax Collector functions purely as 
an agent for others in the maintenance of these funds. The following Agency
Funds are maintained: 
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E. Inventories 
It is the policy of the Tax Collector to record the acquisition of supplies as 
expenditures at the time of purchase. The amount of supplies on hand at any one 
time would be a nominal amount and considered to be immaterial. 

F. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Fi,xed assets used in governmental fund type operations are accounted for in the 
General Fixed Asset Group of Accounts, except for its infrastructure fixed assets 
which the County has elected not to report. All fixed assets acquired by
purchase are recorded at hi stori cal cost. Donated assets are recorded at 
estimated fair market value at the date donated. No depreciation has been 
provided on the County's general fixed assets. Asset~ purchased by the Tax 
Collector are reported in the Board of County Commissioners' General Fixed Asset 
Account Group. 

G. Compensated Absences 
Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as 
vacation and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that are 
attri butable to services al ready rendered and that are not contingent on a 
specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees
is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences 
that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that 
is outside the control of the government and its employees are accounted for in 
the period in which such services are rendered or such events take place. 

In the governmental funds, compensated absences that are expected to be 
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as an 
expenditure and fund liability in the fund that wi 11 pay for them. The remainder 
of the compensated absences liability is reported in the General Long-Term Debt 
Account Group of the Board of County Commissioners. 

H. Total Column on the Combined Statements 
The total column on the combined statements is captioned "Memorandum Only" to 
indicate that it is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in 
this column does not present financial position, results of operations, or 
changes in cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, nor is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund 
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

NOTE 3. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
All Columbia County 

', 

full-time employees participate in the Florida Retirement 
System ("the System"), a multiple-employer public employee retirement system.
The payroll for Tax Collector employees covered by the System for the year ended 
September 30, 1997, was $403,908; this figure also represents the total payroll. 

Membership is compulsory for all full-time and part-time employees working in a 
regularly established position for Columbia County. Elected County officials may
elect not to participate in the System. 

The Florida Retirement System provides vesting of benefits after ten years of 
creditable service, eight years for Elected State and County Officers' Class 
(ESCOC), or seven years for Senior Management Service Class (SMSC). Members are 
eligible for normal retirement when they have met the minimum requirements for 
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NOTE 5. LONG-TERM DEBT 

The Tax Collector has an installment payment agreement with Liberty National 
Leasing Company for the purchase of computer equipment costing $82,000. The 
agreement is being paid in four annual payments of $23,591, including interest 
of 5.9%. 

. 
-

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under the above 
capital lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at 
September 30, 1997: 

September 30, 
1998 $ 23,591

Less: amount representing interest (1. 307)
Present value of future minimum 

lease payments $ 22,284 

During the year ended September 30, 1997, the f o 11 owing changes occurred in long­
term debt: 

Balance Balance 
October 1, September 30, 

1996 Additions Deletions 1997 
Capital leases $ 43 I 334 =$=== $ 21,050 $ 22,284 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE Willi GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Tax Collector 
Columbia County, Florida 

We have audited the component unit general purpose financial statements.of the 
Columbia County Tax Collector, a component unit of Columbia County, Florida, as 
of and for the year ended September 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon 
dated July 30, 1998. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. 

Compl i ance - As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Columbia 
County Tax Collector's financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regu­
lations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompl i ance that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - In planning and performing our au9it 
we considered the Columbia County Tax Collector's internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance 
on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the 
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose ~ll 
matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be mater~al 
weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation
of one or more of the i nterna 1 contra1 components does not reduce to a re1at i ve~ Y 
low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material 1n 
relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected 
wit~in a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over 
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of County
Commissioners, and Tax Collector of Columbia County. However, this report is a 
matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

e~~~ 
July 30, 1998 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Honorable Tax Collector 
Columbia County, Florida 

In planning and performing our audit of the component unit general purpose
financial statements of the Columbia County Tax Collector, a component unit of 
Columbia County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 1997, we considered 
the Office's internal control structure to determine our auditing procedures for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the general purpose financial statements 
and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. 

This letter furnishes the following information required by Chapter 10.550, Rules 
of the Auditor Genera 1. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS - There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS - There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF UNITS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT - The financial report for the year
ended September 30, 1997, filed with the Department of Banking and Finance 
pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the audited 
financial statements. The financial statements of the Tax Co11 ector are combined 
with other County agencies in that report. 

FINANCIAL EMERGENCY STATIJS · Nothing came to our attention that caused us to 
believe that the Tax Collector is, or during the fiscal year was, in a state of 
financial emergency as a consequence of conditions in Section 218.503(1). Florida 
Statutes. 

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be 
reported under the Rules of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.544(1)(f). 

CONCLUSION - We have reviewed information regarding our audit with the Tax 
Collector and have.provided him with appropriate documentation as requested. We 
very much enjoyed the challenges and experiences associated with this audit of 
the Office. We appreciate the overall high quality of the financial records and 
personnel in the Tax Collector's Office. We also appreciate the helpful
assistance and courtesy afforded us by these employees. 

Sincerely, 

POWELL &JONES 

~c~ 
Richard C. Powell 
Certified Public Accountant 
July 30, 1998 
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